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Chairman’s Statement

TERE

2011 was mixed with contentment and concern. On the
macroeconomic level, Hong Kong sustained notable
economic growth of 5%, notwithstanding the uncertainties
arising from the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis which
plagued the global market environment and held back
recovery in the advanced economies. On the local
media industry level, what has been described as a “free
newspaper war” broke out under a robust advertising
market. Two free newspapers came into the market within
less than two months, doubling the daily circulation volume
of free newspapers and increasing that of Hong Kong’s
total newspaper market by more than 50%. This played
havoc with the newspaper industry especially hitting the
mass-market paid newspapers.

It is against this backdrop that the Group delivered a
set of respectable results for 2011. The Group’s Media
operations continued to achieve growth in top line and
gain in market share. On the other hand, along with the
industry as a whole, the Group’s operating costs came under
considerable pressure, due to escalating newsprint prices
and inflation in salary expenses. In addition, in the face of
the “free newspaper war”, the Group took the strategy of
further strengthening Headline Daily both in terms of the
newspaper’s circulation scale and content offering. Although
this affected profit margins in the short run, this investment
will be beneficial for the longer term development of the
product, reinforcing its leadership position in the market.

In spite of the ferocious competition, Headline Daily
remained firmly as Hong Kong’s number 1 free newspaper.
With the biggest circulation among all newspapers, Headline
Daily continued to command the highest newspaper
readership in Hong Kong. Apart from its superiority in
circulation and readership, it also enjoyed competitive
advantages in its printing capability, distribution network
as well as content competence. In addition, the reader
profile of Headline Daily compared favourably with all
other newspapers and boasted the largest number of
highly-educated, affluent and high-spending readers. All
these strengths worked to allow Headline Daily not only to
occupy a dominant share of the free newspaper advertising
market but also win an increasing piece from the paid
newspaper advertising pie.
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Chairman’s Statement

At the same time, our more traditional Media operations
continued to fare strongly in 2011, enjoying the reward from
years of consistent efforts on building up the quality and
reputation of such products. Sing Tao Daily was unaffected
by the contention in the free newspaper market, thanks to
its unique positioning as a niche middle-class newspaper,
and achieved another record high in its revenue and
profitability. Our Magazine operations performed remarkably
well, and in particular both East Week and East Touch saw
above-trend growth in revenue and contributed comfortably
to the Group’s profit.

Many comments have been made in the market about
how the “free newspaper war” will affect the industry. To
us, the competition represents as much an opportunity as
it does a challenge. In 2011, 32% of the total newspaper
advertising market was taken up by free newspapers, and
their proliferation is bound to accelerate the growth of their
market share, which we expect will reach 50% or more.
Free newspapers are quickly developing into a mainstream
media, vying head-on with mass-market paid newspapers as
evidenced by the latter’s continuing drop in circulation sales
and readership. We have positioned Headline Daily well to
take advantage of this trend and capture more share of this
growing market.

Our vision is for Headline Daily to be the leader not just in
the free newspaper market but also in the overall newspaper
market. The cut-throat competition in the free newspaper
market cannot be sustainable. In the process, Headline Daily
will build further on its forte and we are confident that it
will emerge as an even stronger player, when all’s said and
done, and will be the biggest winner in a bigger market.
We are highly optimistic about the long term success of this
product.

I wish to thank our directors, management and staff for
their professional and dedicated work in the past year.
And T would also like to extend my appreciation to our
advertisers, readers and shareholders for their steadfast
support.

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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Major Events of the Year . ——

2011
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Sing Tao News Corporation’s “Leader of the Year 2011" paid tribute to distinguished leaders who are shining examples in their own fields and have made
invaluable contribution to Hong Kong. The six winners awarded in the four categories —“Commerce & Industry / Finance’, "“Community / Public Affairs’, “Education
/ Research”and “Sports / Culture / Performing Arts"— were Sir C K Chow, Mr. Kenneth H. Fang, Mr. Chong Chan-yau, Prof. John Leong Chi-yan, Ms. Ann Hui On-wah
and Mr. Andy Lau Tak-wah.
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Major Events of the Year
FERELE
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Headline Daily has gone from strength to strength since its inauguration six years
ago, and is the number 1 newspaper with the largest circulation and readership in
Hong Kong. The Group's printing factory in Tseung Kwan O is equipped with state-
of-the-art machinery tailored for tabloid-size newspapers, and a new printing
press line was installed during the year which expanded the printing capacity
by over 30% to 1.5 million copies. In May 2011, the printing factory became the
first in Hong Kong and one of very few in the world to receive a number of ISO
qualifications, demonstrating the superb standards of its high quality printing.

(RIGEM) EPMMRMED [BEEIRE] & EERNABEREA (EEIEHR) - URPHREARHE
BEAREEEFRHUBERVEEN - NeANEREN (RFMER) MRREVIKE  RERNE
IR~ # EIBEAR ~ iPhone appRiPad@iEhR @ 2R MREMETHEERREES - (EERBR) UK
RE—REEDHED  BEVEXEMERE -

Following the launch of its dedicated website www.

headlinefinance.hk in April 2011, Headline Daily ' A '_'..;'.s_-'
pioneered a paper-in-paper — Headline Finance L an :
- in July, to provide the most pertinent financial LR
and business information to its readers. In August, e e b Lo
the enhanced Headline Finance paper was made
separately available by free distribution, and
subsequently supplemented by the 4 a.m. edition,
the online flip-page version, the iPhone application
and the iPad HD version. The integrated print and
online platform has allowed Headline Finance to
become a novel and comprehensive professional
finance media product.

INERL Nimd f-ﬂf‘fﬂﬂ':"
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Major Events of the Year
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Sing Tao Daily is positioned as a middle-class newspaper and its content on education has always been well- WHITING
regarded. In addition to the annual Sing Tao Inter-School Debating Competition, Sing Tao Daily organised the HK COMPEI‘HIONEGTD 1
Direct Subsidy Scheme Schools & Primary Schools Dw-lm Ilnd
Admission Expo in August 2011. Held jointly with =N Fdpiih 7=
Smart Parents — Sing Tao Daily's popular parenting ol '1"' = )k & ."";‘ff‘_?:
magazine — and EDUplus.com.hk, the Expo was _,__n ﬂ-\
the first of its kind and was supported by the Hong i
Kong Direct Subsidy Scheme Schools Council and :
the Subsidised Primary Schools Council. Also, The
Standard, Student Standard and Junior Standard
jointly organised the Liberal Studies Essay Writing
Competition.

ESMEEEN2011E7B#ESE [my-magazine] » —{E#AUNEEE T &AM
WRE  FEEEYE FRSHFENZIETE  BETAMN - B1F (R
B 8 [EBBBEAE] - (RTOUCH) #Y TTOUCH Brands’ TOUCH lconfB2852%2 | & (PCMEBIEE
3£ B [BizIT Excellence] ° (EHETIY EHA201154 5 B1 HIR4008) - 25348 35 - BIB4AME -

In July 2011, the Magazine unit introduced www.my-magazine.me, a one-stop access linking up the various websites of
the Group's magazines. During the year, the Magazine unit held a number of important events, including East Week's "Hong
Kong Service Awards’, East Touch’s “TOUCH Brands & TOUCH Icon Awards"and PC Market's “Biz. IT Excellence”. East Week also
celebrated its 400th issue in April with an innovative online bidding campaign.
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Hong Kong News Awards 2011
0NEFEREHELE

Best Scoop

BREBRTE
B Winner: SingTao Daily BE : (ESHR)

Best News Reporting

BEFERE

B Winner: SingTao Daily ®E : (2B HR)

® 1st Runner-up: TE:(EEAR)
Sing Tao Daily

B Merit: SingTao Daily B E : (ESHIR)

Best Business News Reporting

BREKEFEHE
B Merit: SingTao Daily B E : (ESHR)

Best Science News Reporting

BERZHERE

B Winner: SingTao Daily BE : (2B HIR)

B 1st Runner-up: DE  (BEIEER)
Headline Daily

B Merit: Sing Tao Daily BE: (EE5A#%k)

Best News Writing (Chinese)

BEFEEE (PXH)
® 1st Runner-up: DE (EEAFHR)
Sing Tao Daily

Best Business News Writing (Chinese)

RELHEFBERAE (hX4A)

B Merit: Sing Tao Daily BE  (EE5R®H)

Best Headline (Chinese)

BRESE (hxX4)
B Winner: SingTao Daily BE : (ESHR)

Best News Writing (English)
REHFERE (FXA)

® 1st Runner-up: DE  (ESURRY
The Standard

¥ 2nd Runner-up: =5 (EER)
The Standard

Maijor Awards of the Year
B E 4RI

Focus at the Frontline 2011
(R4 - &£E52011) HEERLLE

BAREREE

B Winner: East Week

® Honourable Mention :
Sing Tao Daily

Nature & Environment

BE : (RATD
BE: (EBR®H)

Story Essay

BFihsE4a

B Honourable Mention :
East Week

B2 (RATD

China Star 2011 Design Art Award
2011PEZ BT EHKEE

Rkl
m Silver Award :
Sing Tao Daily
M Best Design Award :

Best Business News Writing (English)
BREKEHEREME (KXE)
B Winner:The Standard ~ BE : (HEXR®R)

B 2nd Runner-up: ZE | (HEER)
The Standard

Best Headline (English)

BEEE (®X4)
B Winner:The Standard ~ BE : (FEXR®R)
=

B 1st Runner-up: EE  (HEIER)
The Standard

¥ 2nd Runner-up: =5 (EER)
The Standard

Photographic Section (Sport)
B4 (B54)

¥ 2nd Runner-up: =5 . (EEAFHR)
Sing Tao Daily

Best News Page Design

RAEHT B AR E R

® 1st Runner-up: DE:(ESA®R)
Sing Tao Daily

Smart Parents
B Merit : The Peak HK
H Merit:

W Merit :

Annual Report 2009
W Merit :

RE (ESAH)
BRERR  (BFI)

EFHE : (ThePeak HK)
BFE (ES5A®H)

Sing Tao Daily Luxury Property =ET

BER  EBTHEE

Sing Tao News Corporation 2009 F 3R

BER  EBTHEE

B Merit : Headline Daily
B Merit : Sing Tao Daily

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED

Sing Tao News Corporation 2010 3
Annual Report 2010

Lt

H Merit : BFER ESFHEE
Sing Tao News Corporation 201044 H SB 1
Leader of the Year 2010 B

EEE

= Merit: BFE (EEHER)
Sing Tao District Post

® Merit:SingTao Dailly 858 ((ESH®HM)

(Overseas) BIMR

BFER  GEEBR®R)
BER (ERBEH)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 (the
“Year”) amounted to approximately HK$2,391 million as
compared with approximately HK$2,910 million last year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$139 million as compared with
approximately HK$240 million last year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend
during the Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been
conducted cautiously and recorded a positive investment
return.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
proposed a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share. The
dividend for the Year shall be HK9.5 cents per share.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio,
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a
net cash position throughout the Year. During the Year, the
Group paid approximately HK$138 million for deposits and
purchases of items of property, plant and equipment. As
at 31 December 2011, the Group had a net cash balance
(calculated with reference to the Group’s cash balances
and total borrowings) of approximately HK$536 million (31
December 2010: approximately HK$559 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings to
equity, was zero as at 31 December 2011 (31 December
2010: zero). As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
had not pledged any asset.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimize the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as the corporate guarantee given to banks to secure
the banking facilities, as at 31 December 2011, the Group
did not have any contingent liability or claim which the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) considered to be
material.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Media and Media-related Operations

In 2011, the Group’s Media operations continued on a
healthy growth path, achieving an increase in revenue of
5.3% over 2010, from approximately HK$1,951.3 million
to approximately HK$2,053.8 million. Overall advertising
spending in Hong Kong remained buoyant throughout
the year, although its rate of increase was evidently lower
compared with 2010. Disruptions to supply chains caused
by the Japan earthquake curbed advertising growth in
the second quarter, and gyrations in the financial markets
dampened sentiment somewhat in the latter part of the year.
On the other hand, a more inflationary environment led to
higher operating costs and hence lower profit margins. In
particular, the average cost of newsprint to the Group in
2011 surged by 18% year-on-year, and average staff costs
went up by 3%. As well, the Group made further investments
in its free newspaper, Headline Daily, as a competition
strategy which also affected short-term profitability. As
a result, segment profit of the Media operations saw a
reduction from approximately HK$210.9 million in 2010 to
approximately HK$181.3 million in 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRS

Newspapers

The advertising market for newspapers in Hong Kong
continued to expand in 2011, again with the increase in free
newspapers’ advertising spending significantly outpacing
that of paid newspapers. It was probably in view of this
high-growth market that new competitors entered the fray
and brought about a so-called “free newspaper war” in 2011.
Between July and September, two new free newspapers
were launched, causing the daily circulation volume of free
newspapers to double and that of all newspapers in Hong
Kong to swell by more than 50%. The new competitors’
tactics of flooding the market not only affected free
newspapers but also caused a decline in circulation sales of
paid newspapers, especially the mass-market products.

Headline Daily remained as the clear number 1 free
newspaper in Hong Kong in the face of the intensified
competition. Average daily circulation increased from around
786,000 copies in 2010 to over 800,000 copies in the first
half of 2011, and grew further to over 900,000 copies in the
fourth quarter. At the same time, Headline Daily’s readership
kept its uptrend while also continuing to top all newspapers
in Hong Kong. According to the latest survey by Ipsos Media
Atlas, Headline Daily’s average readership increased to
1,682,000 in 2011, from 1,664,000 in 2010. The demographic
profile of Headline Daily’s readers also outshone other
industry players. Amongst all Hong Kong’s newspapers,
Headline Daily was able to capture the largest number of
readers with high education qualification, high income,
and high consumption power, allowing it to continue to
be one of the most attractive media to advertisers. With
new competitors entering the market in the second half of
the year, Headline Daily enhanced its content, circulation
volume and distribution network to fortify its competitive
edge, and was successful in further growing its advertising
revenue. The trend in advertising growth has continued
upwards and so far the “free newspaper war” has had
no apparent impact on Headline Daily, apart from the
additional cost pressure from the circulation increase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although the proliferation of free newspapers had dented
readers’ demand for mass-market paid newspapers, Sing Tao
Daily was largely unaffected and continued to perform well
as a middle-class newspaper. Its unique positioning and
brand reputation established over the years distinguished
Sing Tao Daily as a high quality newspaper tailored for
the niche-market. Advertising revenue continued to grow
and the newspaper’s profitability attained another record
high in 2011. Apart from the satisfactory performance of
property advertisements, attributable to an active first hand
market, Sing Tao Daily’s advertising revenue also made good
advancement in other high-yield categories such as branded
products, watches and automobiles. The Sunday art-paper
Features and Rich & Famous sections proved popular among
readers and helped to raise Sing Tao Daily’s importance
in the high-end advertising market. As a paid newspaper,
Sing Tao Daily will keep its editorial focus on specialised
content, such as education, investment and lifestyle, as well
as exclusive and in-depth news reporting so as to offer
distinct value-add to its readers.

The Standard achieved consistent progress in its
performance in 2011. As an English-language free
newspaper targeting the higher end market, it was relatively
unscathed by the competition in the Chinese-language
newspaper market. Apart from a superior circulation volume,
The Standard possessed the most impressive reader profile
among English newspapers in Hong Kong. Its editorial
excellence also prevailed over its competitors, as evidenced
by the seven honours it won in the Hong Kong News Awards
2011. In terms of advertising, The Standard succeeded in
opening up new categories such as overseas properties and
luxury products, and custom-made projects for its clients
were instrumental in augmenting revenue growth. With
both its advertising volume and average page rates steadily
increasing, The Standard’s deficit was considerably reduced.

The global economic environment in 2011 did not work in
favour of Sing Tao Daily’s overseas operations. Recovery in
the US economy was fragile and growth prospects remained
dim. Europe was weighed down by the re-emergence of a
series of sovereign debt crisis and no clear resolution was
in sight. At the same time, competition among newspapers
and from other media remained tough. Under this difficult
operational environment, revenue of the Group’s overseas
business stayed resilient, especially in its key markets in
the US east coast, Canada and Australia. However, the
global inflation and high commodities prices put pressure
on operating costs and inflicted a negative impact on
profit margins. Given these market conditions, the overseas
operations kept tight control on costs and worked at further
improving efficiencies.
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Magazines

The Group’s Magazine unit had an outstanding year in
2011, benefiting from a robust advertising market and the
growing recognition from both readers and advertisers
of its products’ high quality. The growth in revenue and
profitability was among the best scored by the unit in recent
years. In particular, East Week, the unit’s flagship title,
performed admirably and saw good growth in advertising
revenue especially from the cosmetics and watches sector.
Together with effective control over production and staff
costs, East Week was able to achieve a record high profit in
2011, with the momentum continuing to be strong.

East Touch also delivered an impressive performance in
2011. A market leader in the trend and style magazine
sector, East Touch offered innovative advertising formats and
was well-accepted as an influential and effective promotion
platform for many in-vogue products. For example,
exclusive on-pack premium were presented in collaboration
with its advertising clients, generating excellent response to
the advertisers’ marketing while also boosting East Touch’s
income and brand identity. Both the monthly titles, JET and
Spiral, recorded exceptional growth in advertising revenue,
proving their success in targeting the top end of the market.
PC Market faced a declining trend in the IT magazine sector
but maintained a steady performance.

The Magazine unit continued to strengthen its multi-
media platform in 2011, and good progress was made
in developing its online advertising revenue. In addition
to continuously upgrading each title’s own website, an
integrated platform named www.my-magazine.me was
launched in July, which provided a one-stop access to all
the magazine websites under the unit. iPhone applications
have been introduced for all the weekly titles, and iPad
applications have also been made available for PC Market
and JET. Upgrades on these mobile applications are
underway, and an Android version will also be launched
for East Week. The Magazine unit will stay abreast of the
latest new media developments and is primed to expand its
revenue sources from this business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Non-Media Operations
Trading

The Group’s Trading unit recorded revenue of approximately
HK$330.3 million in 2011, as compared with approximately
HK$954.5 million in 2010. The supplier of the camera
trading business entered into direct distribution in the
PRC in 2011, and the Group considered it opportune to
rationalise the unit which is a non-core business of the
Group, thus significantly cutting the unit's turnover. In
addition, the production disruptions caused by the Japan
earthquake in March and the Thailand flooding in August
and September led to a shortage in supply and further
reduced revenue. Correspondingly, segment profit also
decreased from approximately HK$20.6 million in 2010 to
approximately HK$10.2 million in 2011.

PROSPECTS

2012 is presenting us with a number of uncertainties. The
protracted Eurozone debt crisis and fiscal fragility in the
US will continue to dominate global market concerns and
undermine economic prospects. Cost inflation will remain
a threat. The Hong Kong newspaper industry has been
plunged into fierce competition which is yet to be played
out. At this juncture, the outlook for 2012 is relatively
challenging.

That said, we are confident about the Group’s prospects.
We look upon the challenge from the “free newspaper war”
as an opportunity, as the increased competition has sped
up the development of free newspapers into a mainstream
media, alongside the expansion of their advertising market.
We expect that free newspapers will increasingly gain
advertising market share from mass-market paid newspapers,
so that in due course they will represent the bulk of
the overall newspaper market. And Headline Daily, the
number 1 free newspaper, stands to gain the most from this
development.
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Our strategy is to build on Headline Daily’s competitive
strengths. In terms of circulation, we are geared up to
increase print run with a new printing press line added
in 2011 and further augmentation to the facilities will be
undertaken in 2012 to guarantee the highest printing quality.
In terms of content, improvements to the quality and
richness of information will bring Headline Daily to be on
a par with mass-market paid newspapers and will ensure
that it continues to appeal to its large base of high calibre
readers. Although these investments will affect gross profit
margins in the near term, we are positive that Headline
Daily will become an even stronger competitor and will
emerge as the leader in the overall newspaper market in the
long run.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately
2,400 employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus,
share options and provident fund schemes.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (62) has been the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company since 2000. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Shun Tak
Holdings Limited. Mr. Ho contributes much to public affairs.
He is a member of the Standing Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. In addition, he
is an honorary general committee member of The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an economic
consultant of Shandong Provincial Government of the
People’s Republic of China, an honorary trustee of Peking
University, and a trustee of University of International
Business and Economics in China. Mr. Ho is the father of
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Lo Wing Hung (49) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2002. He is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Group as Chief Editor
of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. He was the Chief Executive
Officer of the newspaper group of the Company prior
to his appointment as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in April 2005. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
the media industry. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
for a number of major newspaper and television companies
in Hong Kong. He is the vice chairman of The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong.

Ms. Judy Inn (48) has been an Executive Director of the
Company since 2006 and a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. She is responsible for the Group’s multi-media
business. From 2000 to 2002, she was an Executive Director
of the Company and the Chief Operating Officer of the
Group. In 2004, she was a special advisor to the Chairman
of the Company. Between 1992 and 2000, she worked for
PCCW Limited (“PCCW”). She was the senior vice president
of the PCCW'’s Interactive Multimedia Services, leading the
development of the Netvigator Portal and Interactive TV
services. Between 1992 and 1995, Ms. Inn was the group
manager of the corporate affairs in PCCW. Ms. Inn holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Arts degree from the University of London.

EEhEREEE

BTES

ARBEEGCHOE —_TETFRETARREFER
WITESERARAZHMBAR CES - WIMEME
EREEERARZEYIFNITES -t M
ZEAAER - MEERSTEARBUAHE S &
2EEHEZEERB - WIN ARETRERTE
BEBHAERESE  PRELURERFEERER -
ERKXEZERE  REINEEEHAERE - [
TEERARBFFATERMEREEZNR -

EXBEEUHE ST -_FREEARF ZHT
B BAEARAZTREEFARTZHEK B
AlZES EXAER - NNANFMAREEHECE
BRAM)zARE N_ZETAFHNARKZERAE
RAZITHREHRAMBEARNREERE R 217 HAR
Bo-WMRBERXAGREELR EMHAAKHE
Al BEZHEEAETZHRERERE THF - EXE
AREBREAGEIERE -

MEBmBLZLUHE —TENFRETAQR ZHIT
BEERARB—MBRARIZES AEAEEN
ZEBER R_ZEZFE_TT_FHHE -
BEHEARARRRITEETRAEER 2 EELE -
R_ZTENEFE  FHEARGEFEZERER - R
—NMN=ZFE2_ZTTTFHM  HEEREAET
ERAR(TEMAER] HEEASANRREH
LEHBRGS e REIEE  TEIR LT B
MEBHEEREZER -R—ANLZFE2—ANLA
FHE ML ABNABNCESEEPZEERBL
B -MEUIFEEBREXBELIBURBBEKREX
EfE 4 2 o

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Jia Hongping (48) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2000. He is the Chief Representative
of the Beijing office of the Group and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jia brings with
him a wealth of experience in management, investment and
government relations to the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in various capacities in the government
departments under the China State Council. In 1998, Mr.
Jia joined the Lear Corporation China Limited as executive
director and chief representative of its Beijing office. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree from the Beijing Institute of
Technology University.

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu (60) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2004. He is the Chief Executive
Officer of the magazine group and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
overseeing the publication of magazines of the Group. He
joined the Group in 1999 as the Executive Chief Editor of
Sing Tao Daily. Prior to joining the Group, he held various
key positions in various renowned media companies.

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (53) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He is the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the finance and overall
operations of the Group. He is a Chartered Accountant and
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce and Administration
from Victoria University of Wellington in New Zealand. He
is a member of the New Zealand Society of Accountants, a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience
in corporate management, accounting and finance. He is an
independent non-executive director of AviChina Industry &
Technology Company Limited.

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong (71) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1996 and is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. She has been engaged
in the import and export trading business for many years.
She has over 30 years of experience in the distribution
of consumer products in China, including distribution of
photographic products.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (45) has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 2001 and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible
for developing the Group’s printing operations and other
investments. Mr. Yang gained wealth of experience in
finance and investment arena and had participated in
numerous corporate finance activities for several listed
companies in Hong Kong as well as worked at a leading
international bank. Prior to joining the Group, he held
senior positions in Leefung Asco Printers Holdings Limited,
responsible for the group’s financial affairs and business
development. He is also a non-executive director of Karce
International Holdings Company Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (31) has been a Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2010. Mr. Ho has years
of experience in media business development, wealth
management, and investments focusing on high-tech
industries. He is currently a general partner of Harbor
Pacific Capital, a Silicon Valley-based private investment firm
focused on venture capital and growth equity investments
in the United States and Asia. Prior to founding Harbor
Pacific Capital, Mr. Ho worked at Goldman Sachs in United
States, Amerinvest Group in Greater China and Sing Tao
Newspapers in San Francisco. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a certificate in the Markets and
Management Program from Duke University and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Stanford University.
Mr. Ho is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, the
Chairman of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina (49) has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 2001.
Holdings Limited, chief executive officer and director of

She is the managing director of Shun Tak

Shun Tak-China Travel Shipping Investments Limited,
appointed representative of a company, which is a corporate
director of Sociedade de Turismo e Diversdes de Macau,
S.A., chairperson and executive director of MGM China
Holdings Limited, chairman of Macau Tower Convention &
Entertainment Centre, vice chairman of Macau International
Airport Company Limited and executive director of Air
Macau Company Limited.
director of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited.
Besides gearing her efforts in business endeavors, Ms.
Ho also serves on a host of economic, social and public

She is also a non-executive

services. In mainland China, such participation and services
include being standing committee member of Beijing
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, standing committee member of
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce and vice
president of its Chamber of Tourism, vice-chairperson of
the China Society for Promotion of The Guangcai Program.
In Hong Kong, she serves as honorary president of the
Hong Kong Federation of Women and vice chairperson
of its council, founding honorary advisor and director of
The University of Hong Kong Foundation for Educational
Development and Research, and vice president of The
Hong Kong Girl Guides Association. In Macau, Ms. Ho
acts as committee member of The Government of Macau
SAR Tourism Development Committee and vice chairperson
of Macau Convention and Exhibition Association.
Internationally, Ms. Ho is a member of the board of UNDP
- Peace and Development Foundation, member of Sotheby’s
International Advisory Board and executive committee
member of the World Travel and Tourism Council. Ms. Ho
holds a Bachelor’s degree in marketing and international
business management from the University of Santa Clara.
She received an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration from the Johnson and Wales University in
May 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (44) has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004. He
is a managing director of investment banking at UBS
AG. He is principally responsible for providing corporate
finance services to clients in China and Hong Kong. He
has over 10 years of investment banking experience in
advising corporations, governments and entrepreneurs in
financing strategies. Previously, he was a senior member
of JP Morgan’s investment banking team in Asia, and was a
member of the board of directors of J.P. Morgan Securities
(Asia Pacific) Limited. Prior to joining JP Morgan, he held
senior positions at various renowned institutions including
Credit Lyonnais Securities Asia Limited and CITIC Pacific
Limited, a Hong Kong listed conglomerate. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Columbia University in
New York.

Mr. Lee Cho Jat (79) has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2005. In 1998,
Mr. Lee was awarded the “Silver Bauhinia Star” by The
Government of the HKSAR. He is now the president of
The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong, the president of
The Chinese Language Press Institute, permanent honorary
chairman of the Hong Kong Publishing Federation and
honorary chairman of Sino United Publishing (Holdings)
Limited, The Commercial Press (H.K.) Ltd. and Hong Kong
Commercial Newspapers Co., Ltd. Mr. Lee started his
career in newspaper publishing industry after graduated
from secondary school in 1952 and has over 50 years of
experience in the media industry devoting to promote
Chinese culture. Mr. Lee was awarded Outstanding
Achievement Award of Hong Kong Print Awards in 1997. Mr.
Lee successfully changed traditional state-owned companies
such as The Commercial Press (H.K.) Ltd., Joint Publishing
(Hong Kong) Company Limited, Chung Hwa Book Co.,
(H.K.) Ltd. and C&C Joint Printing Co., (H.K.) Ltd., into fast-
developing modernized international enterprises, which,
under his leadership, become paragons of the industry. Mr.
Lee was appointed a committee member of The Preliminary
Working Committee for The Preparatory Committee for the
HKSAR of The Standing Committee of The National People’s
Congress in 1994 and was further appointed as a member of
The Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR of The National
People’s Congress, participated in the preparation of the
establishment of The Government of the HKSAR. He was
appointed as a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board
of the HKSAR in 1999. Mr. Lee was appointed a member
of 8th, 9th and 10th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. In 2009, Mr. Lee
has been elected the “Hundred of the Greats of Publishing
in the 60 years of New China” which is the greatest honor
in the publishing industry in China. Mr. Lee was granted
an Honorary Doctorate of Arts from Chu Hai College in July
2011.

EEhEREEE

ERARAEEGHE —_FTENFREETARRE LI
HITEF ALBERRIRTRERTEHBCE
FRgE FTEEAER/TEREFENTFPREH ﬁ%
MERS - AL ERERTHREBIOFLER -

REE BFREEREHBERE - fﬁimﬁﬁcrﬂi
RBTEMEERTHZBRAER - ARERAERE
F(ERK)ERAPNZEFEKE - WNINBER
KB BRZFMERBELEIZR BRESE
SERARMBAELMEEFEREEARAA &
EERBADTRLEIRBEBEEL LB -

$?ﬂ)§9ﬁ$(79)§:;§§§£$£ﬁ‘ﬁ$ Gk e
HITEE - R—NNANF - FEER ﬁéiﬁx’é%%ﬂﬁ
E&@E&Fﬁﬁ?ﬁffﬁ%ﬁgﬁj°1)§EEEE/ WEDQ
ek HATXHREHBEER BEHRESK
Léé ek ARBALR(EE) BARAE - B
Eﬂ%ﬁ‘*(i&%)ﬁﬁ&”j)}%i’%?&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz%
BEER FREB-NA_FHPEEXERIW
BHRE  EEREXEREESOFLR  MOEST
Bt - FEER NN ELFREFTBHNRHAE L
[EEHA AR - FREXRDBEBENER (FE)
ERRAR  =ZMEE (BE)BARLAR  hEER(F
B)ERRARRPEFHKBA DR (FE)ERAA
”k%m**"TL“F%?X):LQZIE{MEI/T\
X MRFARAEEBETNTITRARAAE ?5‘&
AER-—NWNAOFEZEREBARKR
EE.gfE%%%Hﬁﬂ(@’ﬁi’*ﬁﬁlf’ﬁi,\E.
C RIRER E?%zl/\Eﬁ%%?V\%i 845 Bl 1T
Eﬁ( EHZEY 2EESENIEBEFRIITR
BB o % 8 1 — ﬂhﬂiﬁé&%%%%%wtﬁ
ERNEYRAREERE - FTRERTEARK
AmEeEERFEN N TEZE - —FTTNEF $
EEZERIFPEOFEREFTLHRAY]
PEERANERSRE - —T——F L $§E$
BREERBRKIZBXEEL] -

PR S
Emwm

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Directors and Senior Management

SEEhkaREEE

Mr. Tung Chee Chen (69) has been an Independent Non-
He is the
chairman, president and chief executive officer of Orient

Executive Director of the Company since 2002.

Overseas (International) Limited. Mr. Tung graduated from
the University of Liverpool, England, where he received
his Bachelor of Science degree and acquired a Master’s
degree in Mechanical Engineering at the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology in the United States. Mr. Tung is
also an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang
Expressway Co., Ltd., Wing Hang Bank, Limited, BOC Hong
Kong (Holdings) Limited, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
and U-Ming Marine Transport Corp. He was previously an
independent non-executive director of PetroChina Company
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All the executive directors of the Company are respectively
responsible for the various aspects of the business and
operation of the Group.
the Company are regarded as the members of the senior
management team of the Group.

These executive directors of
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company will
benefit from the high standard of corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
complied with the CG Code throughout the review period
with deviations from certain code provisions of the CG Code
specified and explained below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2011, the Board consists of 13 directors
including 8 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and
4 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”). Names
and biographical details of the Directors are set out under
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 17 to 22.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERMS

During the Year, the Board held three meetings. Attendance
of each director at the Board meetings held in 2011 is set

RAFE EFERTTZRGZ TESFN-
——EROZEFRERZARIRIEMT

out below:

Directors Meetings Attended/Held
5= HEERAY FRETRE
Executive Directors: HiTEE

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) EEECNEY=Y) 2/3
Lo Wing Hung (Chief Executive Officer) B K (7T BB ) 3/3
Judy Inn TP ER3E 3/3
Jia Hongping BALY 0/3
Lai Ting Yiu L E 3/3
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2l 32 3/3
Sy Wong Chor Fong mEER 2/3
Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey SRR 3/3
Non-Executive Directors: FPITEE :

Ho Kent Ching Tak Al Ef2 3/3
Leung Chun Ying (resigned on 16 December 2011)  RIRE (R=ZF——F+ = A+ NAFFE) 2/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUIHTESE

Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina A 4A38 1/3
King Richard Yun Zing & TR 1/3
Lee Cho Jat 82 3/3
Tung Chee Chen EEX 3/3

The Board held three regular meetings instead of four
as required by the code provision A.1.1 for efficiency
consideration during the Year. The regular meetings were
held to consider and approve, among other things, the
annual results, interim results and annual budget of the
Group.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-
day operations of the Group to the management of the
Company.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles and
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Group is Mr. Lo
Wing Hung. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO were
segregated. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
management and effective performance of the Board. The
CEO is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

All non-executive directors were appointed for a fixed term
ending on 31 December 2012 with renewal option subject to
retirement and re-election by rotation under the bye-laws of
the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee and its
principal roles and functions are:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of remuneration of
the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i) to have the delegated responsibilities to determine the
specific remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management; and

(iii) to review and approve performance based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprised 3 members and a
majority of the members are INEDs. Members are Ms. Ho
Chiu King, Pansy Catilina who is the Chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and
Mr. Lo Wing Hung. The Remuneration Committee approved
the discretionary bonus for the executive directors based
on their performances. The emoluments of each of the
Directors are set out in this annual report on pages 99 to
100.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are responsible for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship. They identify
individuals suitably qualified in terms of skill, knowledge
and experience to become members of the Board, taking
into account of the then existing composition of the Board
in terms of skill, knowledge and experience and make
recommendation to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERMS

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The

Board has established an audit committee and its

principal roles and functions are:

6))

(iD

(iii)

(i)

The

to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors and to review and monitor their independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit

process in accordance with applicable standard;

to oversee the Group’s relation with the external
auditors;

to review the financial information of the Group
including monitoring the integrity of the Group’s
financial statements, annual reports and accounts, and
half-year report, etc. and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgments contained therein; and

to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures.

Audit Committee comprised 3 members and all of

them are INEDs. Attendance of each member at the Audit
Committee meetings held in 2011 is set out below:

VECEZES HIZAENMBRENT:

6 ?MI\H%%%ZEM’U%E CBHEREREBRRE

EoREER  RERERNEZERF KE %—E
W%T?%(Efﬁ% YBY BB EERE
B

(D EEEAKE S S 2 BE

(i) FHAKRBEZHHKER BREEAKEZ
MBHER  FHRUFERFFEREF 2T
Bt WERMESZEE MBS R HE
K

(v SEEASEUBHREBEGRAMELRIERF -

ERZEEH-RZEEN ZHREEHRBEUHE
WTEF BZERN T —FEBITZERZES®
SR IEFERIEMT

Members Meetings Attended/Held
%8 HEERRY FRETRY
King Richard Yun Zing (Chairman) I (£/E) 2/2
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina Al B 38 1/2
Lee Cho Jat T2 2/2
The following is a summary of the work performed by the NTRRAFEEEZZEG 2 THEME !

Audit Committee during the Year:

Reviewed the audited accounts for the year ended 31
December 2010;

Reviewed the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2011; and

Reviewed the internal audit reports including the
review and evaluation of internal controls.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the Group’s
external auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, is set out below:

Services rendered

TEERMS

e

WAERE - B T A E 2 SN I BT 2 K & 5T
EHHZHLFRMT :

Fee payable

Rz R%E EAEAR
HK$°000

FET

Audit services BT ERTS 4,871
Non-audit services IEFE RS 220
Total A 5,091

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and in presenting balanced and clear interim and annual
financial statements, other price-sensitive announcements
and other financial statements disclosures. The reporting
responsibilities of the external auditors are set out in this
annual report on pages 35 to 36.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal control
of the Group and reviews the effectiveness of the system of
internal control through the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Department independently reviewed the major
operating and financial control of the Group on an on-going
basis and covered all major operations of the Group on a
rotational basis. The Internal Audit Department reported
twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Directors
on significant findings on internal controls.

According to the code provision E.1.2, the Chairman of
the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of the
Company. The Chairman of the Board did not attend the
annual general meeting held in 2011 due to an unexpected
business engagement.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2011
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in this annual report on pages 37 to
164.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK5 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2011 payable on 5 June 2012 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 30
May 2012. This recommendation has been incorporated in
the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of financial
position. Together with the interim dividend of HK4.5 cents
per ordinary share paid to shareholders on 22 September
2011, the total annual dividend will amount to HK9.5 cents
per ordinary share for the financial year (2010: HK8.5 cents).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 168 of this annual report.
The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Company and the Group, and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on
pages 166 to 167 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
and share options during the year are set out in notes 34
and 35 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased certain of
its shares on the Stock Exchange and these shares were
subsequently cancelled by the Company. Further details of
these transactions are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not redeemed,
and neither had the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 36(b) to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), amounted
to approximately HK$858,608,000 (2010: approximately
HK$945,628,000), of which HK$41,864,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$173,000.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate amount of
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers represented about 45% of the
Group’s total purchases and the purchase attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was about 17% of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors or their associates or the shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles

Ms. Judy Inn

Mr. Jia Hongping

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis

Mr. Lo Wing Hung

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak
Mr. Leung Chun Ying (resigned on 16 December 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing

Mr. Lee Cho Jat

Mr. Tung Chee Chen

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms.
Judy Inn, Mr. Jia Hongping, Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, Mr.
Lee Cho Jat and Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong will retire by
rotation, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”). Details of the Directors’ standing for re-
election are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr.
King Richard Yun Zing, Mr. Lee Cho Jat and Mr. Tung Chee
Chen and considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 22 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings of the Company every year. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements,
none of the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”) were as follows:

EEER

RZE——F+-_A=1+—"H EFERARQRFZK
BREREBBEEROT BEREEHFRPEKRM ([F
HREEIED]) E3525FE 2B MATR SR 2
R

Number of ordinary shares held, Percentage

capacity and nature of interest of the

S EREE SO RERME Company’s

Personal Corporate issued

Name of director Notes interests interests Total share capital

AT

BITRA

EEns llogz3 BAER AL E By ZEDH

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles Al LB 5 A @)) - 426,197,500 426,197,500 49.04%

Ms. Judy Inn MRz + 1,300,000 - 1,300,000 0.14%

Mr. Jia Hongping B FAE 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.23%

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu REM S E 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.23%

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Bkt 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.23%

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong MERF XL @) 1,202,000 81,959,500 83,161,500 9.56%

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong,

Ronald Jeffrey SRR A& 1,350,000 - 1,350,000 0.15%

Notes: M e -

(1) Of these shares, 424,948,000 and 1,249,500 shares were
held by Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”) and Yosham
Limited, respectively, which were beneficially owned by
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.

(2) The corporate interests of 81,959,500 shares were held
by Stagelight Group Limited (“Stagelight”), which was
beneficially owned by Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors had any
interest and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the share option schemes disclosures
in note 35 to the financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, those persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had the
interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as

EER s

ESWERMD ZER

B BB B AT Bl BN M IS R I RE355) - AR RR
AERYVEAEMESFIRETE ZEBHAKM
TNA\RZ FEROEMERN  TEBARRFRZK
M EREMED  IWERAFENETEZSF
A - AR B HREAA TN B R E IFEET LEA L
B BEEENEMEAMEABRBRERAZSER -

TERREHMA L 2HEE

R-F——F+-_A=1+—0 BRARBRERESH
FEHEGRPIFBMEFE 2 ECMALE - TIIA
T (RARAZEFHTHRAERIN) BEARARACE
FITIRARS% S IA £ 2 #E s

follows:

Percentage

of the

Capacity Number of Company’s

and nature ordinary issued

Name Notes of interest shares held share capital

EERQT

=370 i EBROTREZ

=L #at EEME EEREE Aot

Luckman (D) Beneficial owner 424,948,000 48.89%
BEEEAA

Hong Kong Tobacco Company &BEEHFRAF] @) Deemed interest 424,948,000 48.89%
Limited (“HK Tobacco”) ([BEBEE]) BRER 2 EE

Stagelight 3 Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.43%
BEEEAA

FIL Limited Investment manager 71,938,000 8.27%

& E
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

Notes:

(1) The interests of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, held through a
controlled corporation, duplicates to those disclosed in the
section “Directors’ interests” above.

(2) Pursuant to an option agreement dated 20 June 2001
and six supplemental agreements entered into between
Luckman and HK Tobacco on 19 July 2002, 19 July 2003,
19 July 2006, 19 July 2007, 19 July 2008 and 19 July
2010, respectively, HK Tobacco was granted an option to
purchase from Luckman 33,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company. Under Sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, HK
Tobacco is deemed to be interested in all the 424,948,000
ordinary shares of the Company held by Luckman.

(3) The interests of Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong, held through a
controlled corporation, duplicates to those disclosed in the
section “Directors’ interests” above.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions being held
by any person in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young
22/F CITIC Tower

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
37 to 164, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

8N 2 B S

X ER AT
BBPRAZBIR
FEARE2E

T +852 2846 9888
{EEL: +852 2868 4432

HERYNHESEERAAZERRE
(RERZZMAEZAERLA)

HMEBREAREITEZIGENESHEESESR
RAR(ERRD REMBAR (REIEEE])
MEZEAMBEHRE  UEAMBHRRERE _T——F
T A=+t ANKEEMBRRRM R E BN
MEBHEZALEFENGERER  Ha2EK
BR GAEDEPIR KOBRIRERUREE
SR RBEMEMBEEER -

EENGREMBERARENER

BERAEFAABERBEEEGHMAGHMNE
BUBHREEMEE R RIRD 2 B ER T RE
REMBRECHEHEEMAAMINE  ALHIEE
ERR/VENEENAMIZES - NEFEMERE
PHEHERNRFFHERM B EAHRRA -

RBEWEE

RMNEEREERMOERHZSHANBA
REEHE R - RMOMEFEERE—NN\—FA
AEEOEE B2 ERFRL - ML EE A
9 o B AP BET 3 AR 45 B PO Y EL M E 1T A £ B K
RAGEE A -

HMPEREBEEESHMASEMNEESTZER
MMENTESZ - SEEAERAMBTREER
RE - WRBFMTESR MRS ERELSE
REMBRRRE M FAERNEARNERRML -
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Independent Auditors’ Report

V3 TR ES

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR e W

Year ended 31 December 2011 BE - F——F+-_HA=+—HIFFE

Notes 2011 2010
Bt —F——-fF —ZT-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
REVENUE A 5 2,390,903 2,909,661
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,644,501) (2,143,071
Gross profit EF 746,402 766,590
Other income and gains H A A R fz= 5 13,717 54,448
Gain on loss of control in a KE KB R A
subsidiary HE B W 2= 6 - 11,474
Distribution costs 73 85 K AN (281,517) (281,317)
Administrative expenses THRX (319,044) (322,144)
Other expenses HEMbfx (14,120) (7,774
Finance costs B & A A 7 537 (2,130)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE T O A RE M R EE -
Jointly-controlled entities FFEE A A 25,814 31,474
An associate — B & QA (24,801) (951)
Impairment of amounts due from JE Y Ak R 4% 1 A B SRIB R E
jointly-controlled entities (7,440) (3,945)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AR R 8 138,474 245,725
Income tax credit/(expense) PSR (FZ) 11 153 (8,484)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEFEHEF 138,627 237,241
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company RARHEE A 12 138,668 240,443
Non-controlling interests FEZE (41) (3,202)
138,627 237,241
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREBRERE AEM
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SRR — GBI
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY - (HK cents) 14
Basic R 15.94 28.12
Diluted g 15.60 27.31

ERAFERMNBREMNERRENFREM B R

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year
RIMFE13RIEE

are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmREk

Year ended 31 December 2011 BE - F——F+_-_HA=+—HIFFE

Notes 2011 2010
k23 —E——F —T-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A FE iR 138,627 237,241
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 E W=
Gains on property revaluation e A 15 11,944 17,044
Income tax effect g Rl s & (2,880) (5,509)
9,064 11,535
Available-for-sale investments: AR ERE
Changes in fair value NFEED) 23 1,017 1,853
Reclassification adjustment for BREEHFERERANERE
losses included in the MEDEFAE
consolidated income statement
- impairment losses — REEE 23 - 47
Income tax effect FriisSfisg e - -
1,017 1,900
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBHE N Z5
of foreign operations (4,005) 11,112
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REAFEAGCEZEKRREFE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 6,076 24,547
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEXHEHKRZAE
FOR THE YEAR 144,703 261,788
Attributable to: LATR AL FEfL -
Owners of the Company PN/NESIE RN 144,744 264,990
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M AR (41) (3,202)
144,703 261,788
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

Notes 2011 2010
Hrat —2-—fF —E-2fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 15 760,839 678,692
Investment properties WEME 16 38,304 37,246
Property under development BRPME 17 - -
Goodwill Bk 18 857 857
Other intangible assets EMEREE 19 11,712 12,837
Investments in jointly-controlled entities 7 £ F#E §I A 7] 2 & & 21 138,202 127,945
Investment in an associate R—REBERR 2®"E 22 42,267 61,507
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE 23 44,559 50,088
Deposit for an investment RE & 24 27,443 27,443
Deferred tax assets EEMIBEE 33 13,027 11,840
Other deposits paid BEtE#iRe 21,847 36,008
Total non-current assets ERBEELLE 1,099,057 1,044,463
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories g 25 97,995 107,256
Trade receivables JE UK BR 5K 26 561,531 518,399
Prepayments, deposits and TR RIE - ? NE M
other receivables JE YR IR 27 47,865 53,545
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFERABREY
profit or loss g EE 28 48,314 58,654
Tax recoverable AT Y Bl F I8 5,902 601
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeSEHER 29 540,008 566,006
Total current assets MEEELE 1,301,615 1,304,461
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Trade and bills payables FETBR R B4R 30 134,920 140,009
Other payables and accruals Eh JE T 5RIE KR EFH FRIE 31 250,057 238,244
Tax payable JE 1 7218 62,471 76,304
Finance lease and hire purchase EEMRL REEE QOENFKIA
contract payables 32 1,121 1,670
Total current liabilities REBBEELRE 448,569 456,227
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 853,046 848,234
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERABEECEERE
LIABILITIES 1,952,103 1,892,697
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

Notes 2011 2010
i3 —g-—f —T-TF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBABECEELE
LIABILITIES 1,952,103 1,892,697
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Finance lease and hire purchase FEENREBE L
contract payables FEHFRIE 32 2,683 5,563
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 33 40,885 37,639
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEETE 43,568 43,202
Net assets BEFE 1,908,535 1,849,495
EQUITY iR ¥
Equity attributable to owners RNRAIER A AL I
of the Company
Issued capital BT AR 34 173,806 174,023
Reserves & 1,692,555 1,631,610
Proposed final dividend EZAHKE 13 41,864 43511
1,908,225 1,849,144
Non-controlling interests EIE IR = 310 351
Total equity It e sa 1,908,535 1,849,495
Lo Wing Hung Lau Chung Man, Louis
Bk 8l fth X
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=AY
AR A

—H= N\ 7/
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B E) xR

Year ended 31 December 2011 #BZE —E——F+_-H=+—HIFFZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLARAARS
Available-
Issued for-sale
ordinary Share Share Asset investment  Exchange Proposed Non-
share  premium Contributed  option revaluation revaluation fluctuation Other  Retained final controlling Total
Notes capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  profits  dividend Total interests equity
B&f TlHE
EER ki BhE KE REEH 3 il #ER
it kx  EEE 4A2% B EffER BE  ROEE EbRE REEW ABRE &3t BE  RE4E
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00 — HKS000  HKS000 — HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
AT TEr  TEx  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr
(Note 34)  (Note 34) (Note 36(a))
(Hs) /)
A1 January 2010 H-F-FE-F-1 169,168 SABSS BT S5 0 BA6 1990 SRS B4 L84 RG0S
Proft for the year KEEET - - - - - - 240443 B IV V) N X A )
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ EEAM2ENE:
Gains on property revaluation UEEL) - - - - 1153 - - - - - 11,5% - 11,55
Changes in fair value of available- THHEREATERY:
for-sale investments, net of tax MGE - - - - - 190 - - - - 1900 - 1900
Exchange differences on translation BEBNSRMELEE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1,112 - - - 1,112 - 11,112
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ X ZEUZEE - - - - 113% 1900 111 - M4 - 2049 (3200 261,788
Loss of control in a subsidiary KE-FHELRHE 6 - - - - - - - - - - - (861)  (861D)
Issue of ordinary shares ek 3 i85 Bl - 060 - - - - - -0 (51
Bquity-setled share option amngements  RESERHER 3 - - - 79 - - - - - - 9 - 79
Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - - - - - (54) (3419 (25473) - (5413
Tnterim 2010 dividend 13 - - - - - - - - (0 - B0 - (0
Proposed final 2010 dividend 13 - - - - - - - - @sn $311 -
At 31 December 2010 and
at 1 January 2011 174023 XY 413815 9,744 07,030 4610 40418 19960 1,050,602 B3I 1849144 P 184949
Profit for the year - - - - - - 138,668 - 138608 (@) 138627
Other comprehensive income for the year: % H‘Mﬂkm
Gains on property revaluation VEELY G - - - - 9,064 - - - - - 0,064 - 9,064
Changes in fair value of available- THHEREATERY:
for-sale investments, net of tax il - - - - - 1017 - - - - 1017 - 107
Exchange differences on translation BERNERNER 2R
of foreign operations - - - - - - (4005 - - - (4,005 - (4,005
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ENEEE - - - - 9,064 1007 (4005 - 138668 - 1M @y 14470
Repurchase of shares BERR 34 ) (d560) - - - - - - - 6y - 61y
Issue of ordinary shares kA 3 30 197 - (770) - - - - - - 1507 - 1,507
Equity-settled share option amrangements ~ RELERRERH % - - - 014 - - - - - - 014 - 014
Final 2010 dividend declared BER-F-TERIRS 13 - - - - - - - - () @5 B - B
Interim 2011 dividend ZE--ERERE 13 - - - - - - - - B - B - B
Proposed final 2011 dividend -3--ExERE 13 - - - - - - - - (8 41864 - - -
At31 December 2011 AoB--F1zf=t1-8 13806 2790 4R 9588 6004 56 36413 19960 1108256 41864 1908225 310 1908535
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated * BEUERFRERPERTHEAVBARRFTHN
reserves of HK$1,692,555,000 (2010: HK$1,631,610,000) RAF1H1,692,555,0008 L (ZE —ZF F -
in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1,631,610, 000/%713)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2011 BE - F——F+_-_HA=+—HIFFE

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011

Notes 2011 2010
g3 —E-——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBCHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR B B4 A 138,474 245,725
Adjustments for: EEHR THIFE
Finance costs Bl & B AN 7 537 2,130
Gain on loss of control in KE— B A 72 Hl
a subsidiary ol g 6 - (11,474
Impairment of amounts due from JE Y S R 2 I
jointly-controlled entities IR E 7,440 3,945
Share of profits and losses of FEEHBZESIQFZ
jointly-controlled entities i Al K 1 (25,814) (31,474)
Share of profits and losses of FEAE — R B & 2 A 2 % F
an associate N &8 24,801 951
Bank interest income IRITF B A (4,426) (4,900)
Investment income wERA 5 (631) -
Dividend income from listed equity KB LETRAKREZ
investments & B A 5 (1,859) (988)
Dividend income from an unlisted RE—HFLTAHEEE
available-for-sale investment TEZRBIMA 5 (2,893) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net on: NEEEE (W) 2 F5E
Financial assets at fair value BEAFELZABREEREY
through profit or loss MBEE 5 17,684 (22,042)
Derivative financial instruments — MELBMIAE-TTE
transactions not qualifying HAHPERZR S
as hedges 5 1,320 6,129
Impairment losses on At EREREER
available-for-sale investments 8 9,000 7,047
Gain on disposal of items of LEWME  BERZHEBIEE
property, plant and equipment ZWEs 5 (431) (1,103)
Depreciation e 8 80,370 75,541
Revaluation surplus on land T REFEE R
and buildings 8 (1,528) (4,229)
Changes in fair values of investment REMERTEE
properties 8 (1,643) (3,239
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESN 8 1,125 1,126
Impairment of trade receivables JE YR BR ORI (B 8 4,828 3,710
Equity-settled share option expense BELEBERERS 8 614 729
246,968 267,584



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2011 BE - F——F+-_HA=+—HIFFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBZRERE (B)
ACTIVITIES (continued)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL (M) 9,261 (41,474
Increase in trade receivables, JEURHRSR - R RIB - e Kk
prepayments, deposits and Hh FE YL SR IE I N
other receivables (42,286) (30,859)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets Z A FEGLAEBREE 2B
at fair value through profit or loss BEERL () (7,344) 4,684
Decrease in derivative financial MR T AR
instruments (1,320) (6,129)
Increase in trade and bills payables, ER R R RIE - Hitb T
and other payables and accruals OIE N FEET IR L N 1,309 103,137
Cash generated from operations KEEBFEARS 206,588 296,943
Hong Kong profits tax paid EABENEN (7,659) (3,050)
Overseas tax paid BB IE (12,270) (17,136)
Net cash flows from MEHEREE 2
operating activities REeREFRE 186,659 276,757
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2011 BE - F——F+_-_HA=+—HIFFE

Notes 2011 2010
g3 —2-——-F —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 B 4,426 4,900
Investment income wEWA 631 -
Dividends received from REH HT flaalz
jointly-controlled entities 2R B 7,752 39,280
Dividends received from listed equity KRB EMRAEE 2B W E
investments 1,859 988
Dividends received from an unlisted KE—IHIFLTAHLERE
available-for-sale investment 2 B AR B 2,893 -
Purchases of items of property, plant HEEWZ - KE K&K EEER
and equipment (115,807) (45,221)
Deposits paid for purchases of items FEEYXE  BEMFZEEE
of property, plant and equipment ZE#BEE (21,847) (36,008)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - W%& % #IEH
property, plant and equipment FriS 33 8,218 6,844
Additions to property under RNEER EF L/
development 17 - (54,411
Loss of control in a subsidiary 9€£ i B JB8 1 ) 42 il 6 - (1,769
Increase in amounts due from JE M R 3% I R R R IB S N
jointly-controlled entities (1,133) (2,932)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount JE W — fE Bt & A B FUR
due from an associate () (5,561) 32,606
Purchase of an available-for-sale BE-—BAHEERE
investment (2,454) -
Increase in non-pledged time deposits FEV{S BB HI A A
with original maturity of more than =8 Az 0 E H
three months when acquired 15 5R3E 0 (27,132) (4,599)
Net cash flows used in investing REEBER 2R ERE
activities FRE (148,155) (60,322)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2011 BE - F——F+-_HA=+—HIFFE

Notes 2011 2010
Bt —EB——fF —ZT-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METB2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 17 BA% TS 5IA 34 1,507 20,580
Repurchase of ordinary shares A O B AR 34 (5,123) -
Repayment of bank loans BEEBITER - (30,000)
Capital element of finance lease rental Bt & BB 2 EARZBH
payments (6,711) (4,687)
Interest paid [ RS 7 (401) (1,909
Interest element of finance lease rental B & LB 2 F 2215
payments 7 (136) (221)
Dividends paid 2R B (82,661) (55,588)
Net cash flows used in financing REESTRCES
activities MEFE (93,525) (71,825)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH REREE&ZEEEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, GRd) B8 (55,021) 144,610
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzRekRE&EHEIER
beginning of year 555,782 403,702
Effect of foreign exchange rate X EHA
changes, net 1,891 7,470
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRzEeREEEEER
AT END OF YEAR 502,652 555,782
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEHEERA
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Eero M
Cash and bank balances He M7 29 368,821 383,893
Non-pledged time deposits EIKIR T BT K 29 171,187 182,113
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BB IR R AT e IR &
in the statement of kReEHBEIER
financial position 540,008 566,006
Non-pledged time deposits with REGERIHRBER=EA
original maturity of more than Z?ﬁiﬁiﬁmﬂﬁfw
three months when acquired (37,356) (10,224)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReERERAMLNIAS
in the statement of cash flows MR FEMBEEE 502,652 555,782
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Notes 2011 2010
ok —E——-F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 15 3,600 3,400
Investments in subsidiaries RETE AR Z®RE 20 1,067,878 1,157,047
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,071,478 1,160,447
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FETRIE - 1Re R EAM
receivables & U 5K I8 27 1,453 1,499
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHEH 29 1,011 529
Total current assets nEEEMLE 2,464 2,028
CURRENT LIABILITIES G R=Ri
Other payables and accruals Eh & < 5RIE % FE 5T R IE 31 6,556 5,334
Total current liabilities nBBEES 6,556 5,334
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEFEE (4,092) (3,3006)
Net assets BEFE 1,067,386 1,157,141
EQUITY iR ¥
Issued capital BEITRA 34 173,806 174,023
Reserves 1 36(b) 851,716 939,607
Proposed final dividend EEAHRE 13 41,864 43,511
Total equity it e s 1,067,386 1,157,141

Lo Wing Hung
| & &4
Director

EF
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Lau Chung Man, Louis

Bl fh X

Director
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following principal activities:

*  media

* human capital management

* property holding

* trading of photographic products
* investment holding

In the opinion of the directors, Luckman Trading
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the Company’s controlling shareholder.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings, derivative
financial instruments and certain investments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1.RB > H¥E ()

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.
HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards - Limited
Exemption from Comparative
HKERS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures
HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments
Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding
the impact of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments
to HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.
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2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as

follows:

(a)

b

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in
which persons and key management personnel
affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption
from the general related party disclosure
requirements for transactions with a government
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same government
as the reporting entity. The accounting policy
for related parties has been revised to reflect the
changes in the definitions of related parties under
the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details of
the related party transactions, including the related
comparative information, are included in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details of
the key amendments most applicable to the Group
are as follows:

* HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The
amendment clarifies that the amendments
to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede
the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in
2008).
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2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

B BENBE22E (&)

(b) (continued) b) (&)

In addition, the amendment limits the
scope of measurement choices for non-
controlling interests. Only the components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by another HKFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance
to clarify the accounting treatment for non-
replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based
payment awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendment clarifies that an analysis of
each component of other comprehensive
income can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes
to the financial statements. The Group elects
to present the analysis of each component of
other comprehensive income in the statement
of changes in equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28
and HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied
earlier.
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2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKEFRS 9
HKEFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards -
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —

Transfers of Financial Assets!

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprebensive
Income?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
- Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets*

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine'
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015

Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of
the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CEMGENAEMNEBHIEREE]

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS
27 and HK(SIO)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also includes the issues raised in
HK(SIC)-Int 12.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Nomn-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements
for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities that are previously included in HKAS
27 Comsolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in jJoint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, and the consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 from 1 January
2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 January 2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in
time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value. The amendments introduce a rebuttable
presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the
basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through
sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes
— Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using
the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be
measured on a sale basis. The Group expects to adopt
HKAS 12 Amendments from 1 January 2012. Upon the
adoption, the Group’s deferred tax liability with respect
to investment properties located in Hong Kong is
expected to be reduced.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of
short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19
(2011) from 1 January 2013.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

24 T EEBRREE

Subsidiaries =N

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends

oY /B8 2 AR AR & B B s R 1R AL R K
BEHE  NEFMEMNEZRF -

MEBLARXERREREEBRE ST ARRD
Al Wk o ARBIRHE QR 2 Ty mK

AR ERE/BEIIE -

received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Joint ventures eEEhE

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual EEPED—BREBEOUERHEMKIL A
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties BB AEBEAME KL —TERESE
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture HeoAELEN—HBLIEBLEmASEM

L& T A L -

\|

operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers EREECHRCEEMETHASEEEREG
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint BrEIHER A xEE2FHEAEER
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture MEREIREAECEE - KEE5EDNEMSR
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised MAMEBEMENEBEEZDRIIASEE

R

upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the ERsacHEBEL I RBEERE 2
joint venture’s operations and any distributions of T s o

surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in

proportion to their respective capital contributions,

or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.

A joint venture is treated as: BEPERTINERT HIHEMRA -

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, @ MBARR WMASEHZEELERS
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture; BHEEESEE TG E

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not (b HREEHIAGE MAEBEHZAETE
have unilateral control, but has joint control, WESE T EHEESBEELEGE B
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture; ERHEHRAENZEERE

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral () BB AR MAEBAAEFE LR
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, BEENEEEHZAS Y HREH
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s BEAHEFEETDR20% 2 FMEAR
registered capital and is in a position to exercise WA 2B PETEERTE N 5
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance (d) BEBRZEDTERFEI0NTER MR ER

with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s ETR20% 2 MER - BAAI B # KM
registered capital and has neither joint control of, BEHAZHZAECESIHETREKR
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence TEN -

over, the joint venture.

B - MASEERIEERFTELAED
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio
is different to the Group’s equity interest, the share of
post-acquisition results of the jointly-controlled entities
is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the
Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities.

Associate

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or
a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
an associate is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of an associate is included as part
of the Group’s investment in an associate and is not
individually tested for impairment.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether it measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value as at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration which is deemed to be an
asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured.
Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
In instances where the contingent consideration does
not fall within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011

EBEHREE

%f”\ﬁﬂﬁuﬁ%ﬁ&)\ﬁﬁ HE BTN
BHHWAFEAE ZAFERANEEEER
MEERWERBMNA ”?TE AEEBREE
HZAEREBEAAENRE  RAKEETIA
BB B T IR SR IR AR SR VA - N B
XGeatth  FERBNMMEERaNETH
FAEACRBRRAZLIDFZFEENRK
WEETT SRR It s - AEREREENRFE
SR W IE T A R B E R EM IS BIRTE
FEBRBENMBEEMEAKRSE Y YRR FE
AR WEBRAREERIIRHA °

EAEERE -EESRE  SREALER -
UL RE B BB 4B IR 3B R AR AR 1 - AR A SR
T%E@Eﬁf%’éf?&%ﬁ LAE A 0958 Mg
T~ EREEBRNESEEOPHBRARLT
EIE TR -

i 2 & OF 0 B BUETT - W7 R Al A #O 4K
Yo B 77 B i ik BB B H3EY & (B B3R W BB B
HOATEEBRBERENE -

MBI ETEENEAMIXARESRUE
BHRAFEER IARBHEER—EE

EREE AFENAELDEES G LA
BIOWMES,  HR AR AL S K
rrrrrrr BT EZIN EE P TR IES S

?Eoéféﬁﬁﬁ‘¢k% FHRARET
BREAEENFEORBEANANBRLT @+ E
mﬁmaméﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?%o



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24.TEEHHEME (£)
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets FMBEEZRE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when WEBTHRBHE EFTEHEE (FE -
annual impairment testing for an asset is required REBBBEE Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ? REWMENEER
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial SN BEEREAS  BIEFEEZ T WE S
assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s FHoBAEZINOSBEEENRECELEN
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable ZEBEBAE UKREAFEREEXAZES
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating EFE  UMSENEEMEL]  RIFEET
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, REEEARMBYNEMEESKARNEEZS
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the MTREIREARA  BIFELBERT  BHEE
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely EFffBsReELESM2AKESEE -

independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying HMEEBERREEZEAEBBEATKE S
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In FERERER - NAETEREER Mzt RKES
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows MERANMERMEHEERBEEEIUKE
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax EERABEETRR TG ZBRBATALIR R M
discount rate that reflects current market assessments ARIR M HIRE - /)EWE EHREZBEEE Rk
of the time value of money and the risks specific to FBRYXYBEREEEZHBERER+P X
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income i BRIEBEDIREMHEEYER - BRERIE
statement in the period in which it arises in those DIREZBAEGEE 2 BB ST BER AR

expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REREHR BT EHEREBERZAERZ
period as to whether there is any indication that BEEBRETEHBEXAEERD - MERE
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer Az~ AlfEET ATk &% - ZﬁTJﬁEE’UZ%{?
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication (BERETHBEERN REEER
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A LEEE2 RESBE 2 Mt HRE @Jﬁ‘*
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other BERE - ERBENGEREREENBETSF
than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed B AEHERBEBEMNTFABIT ZEEE (30
only if there has been a change in the estimates used BRATMITE ) - BEZZREEEIR
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but EEEZHBEGFAKRER  BRIEEEDKRER
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that BEZIER - BIBEREEIE  JIBEZEER
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ BEZBMSTBEREANR -

amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit
is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2% to 5%

Buildings (freehold) 2% to 5%

Plant and machinery 6% to 50%

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures, 10% to 30%
equipment and others
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20
years.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which
is tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
income statement so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, quoted and
unquoted financial instruments, and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly change,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. The reclassification from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
This evaluation does not affect any financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option at designation as these instruments
cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the income statement in other expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future
or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the Group has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

24 TEETHRBE (&)

RERHEMMBEE (&)
ARG ERMYFRE (&)

MNEERR  IHHENMBRERRUAF
BFfE MAZRBBAEISAIHEER
EEHFEHEANEMEZERE  BERET
BER(ER  RitBFealaRBERAH
il as) KEERERER] /RER L (B -
R BEFEERAHLEREERRERES D
BERSEROEMHAS) - HFHEAHEENE
B AP REE N B R B B0 Bl 2 A F
BUWA R B WA - WARE T X PrE AR
AR INBRAERSERAEDRREMBKA -

i 3F Em R IERE 2 A FE LR i at
E RAR@AEBAFEMLAZHEZY
HEREBEXN  (BE R ZAMGF 276
M- TEER BT ARBRMAF 2FE - Bl
FRE AR EFBEBEIIRK -

AEESFEEARLEMBEE - UFER
CHHENRIMERRENASE - EH D
BAT  EMSNERERAEEELEEZ
EUBEEREREBAATRBREENER
HIRERNE  AREAEEESLZSEMHE
EEDE - EMBEEN G EFMEUHRIEN
EE - MAKEEENAENEARBEREE
ZEEEARARIY  IESBEERME
WHIE - AEEAKEBENTBEEREEY
BKEEIHAR  TAESBEREEIHE
Al e

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011 E



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 g R BT 5E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the income
statement — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments, and finance
lease and hire purchase contract payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria of
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
option pricing models; and other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest
rate swaps and equity and commodity contracts, for
trading purposes. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the actual
cost, first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis,
where appropriate and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including time deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

* when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) advertising income, when the advertisements have
been published or broadcasted;

(b) circulation income, when the newspapers and
magazines have been delivered;

(¢) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold,

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) from the rendering of services, when the services
have been rendered;

(f) interest and investment income, on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets;

(g) securities transactions are accounted for on a trade
date basis; and

(h) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, further details of which
are given in note 35 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for
those employees who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds. When an employee leaves the
Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other retirement
benefit schemes overseas prior to his/her interest
in the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
the Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the employees
in Mainland China, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grants the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to
the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and an associate
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24. TEEHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset
value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by the management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for
sale and recognises movements of their fair values
in equity. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the income statement. In addition,
certain of the Group’s unlisted investments included
in available-for-sale investments were stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors
are of the opinion that the fair values cannot be
measured reliably. The Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there are any indicators
of impairment for these unlisted investments. These
unlisted investments are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. In determining the recoverable
amount, management considers various factors, such
as value in use, available data for disposing of such
assets and other factors relevant to these unlisted
investments. At 31 December 2011, impairment losses
of HK$16,047,000 have been recognised for available-
for-sale investments (2010: HK$7,047,000). The carrying
amount of available-for-sale assets was HK$44,559,000
(2010: HK$50,088,000).

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011

ERGEHE R (&)

fhEt TR EE

RBEMAREH T - WREFEZEERE
ERMEENEAFEZEAARZEBAR
KZEEBRE  URBEFHTARERZ ZER
BB

A ¢ R B

AEEBETEEDEAEHE  WEHE
THERAEQAFEEZS - EAFETHRE  B1E
BHEEBETHKELIRR ARAEREEAEK
SRIERRE - Wi AREEE T RIEEAH
HERENIE LM ERK AR BEE
REAGEAFEMIAMBEERAKN  UBRES
A AFETEAEMESE - AEERER
ERRFIHETIMNPFRERZSIELTR
BEERBRE EFEDRBEREE®DE
AU e - ZEIELETREGHETRENAR -
EEESBRSEAENNEREBRBETR
Bl &% - BIFERME - NERT T RE & 56
EREEEZARNE  PINEREE RES
BMEENTBHRE  UERBEZSIELHRE
MEMREZ R_FE—F+=_A=+—8 "
B A4S T ] & 18 B R AR R (B 5 18116,047,000
BIL(ZZE—ZF 17,047,000 70) » Al it
EEEREEA44,559,0008 0 (ZE—FF ¢
50,088,000/8 7T) °



Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2011 was HK$7,196,000 (2010: HK$7,558,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2011 was approximately HK$536,138,000 (2010:
approximately HK$565,721,000). Further details are
contained in note 33 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for trade
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade receivables. Impairment provision is made
for trade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of trade receivables
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
impairment provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. The aggregate carrying
amount of trade receivables as at 31 December 2011
amounted to HK$561,531,000 (2010: HK$518,399,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs to sell is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar lease or transactions. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from fair market value by
reference to independent valuations. This conclusion
is supported by independent professional appraisers
who were engaged by the Group during the year to
perform valuations on the Group’s properties. The
carrying amounts of land and buildings and investment
properties at 31 December 2011 were HK$338,893,000
(2010: HK$333,593,000) and HK$38,304,000 (2010:
HK$37,246,000), respectively.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the media segment publishes and distributes
newspapers, magazines and books to readers in
Hong Kong, Canada, the United States of America,
Europe and Australia, and sells the respective
content of such publications in Hong Kong and
Mainland China;

(b) the trading segment trades photographic products;
and

(c) the others segment comprises the Group’s Internet
and information consultancy services, investment
and property holding business together with
corporate expense items.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that finance costs are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax
recoverable. Segment liabilities exclude finance lease
and hire purchase contract payables, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BELIER (&)

7

Year ended 31 December 2011 Media Trading Others Total
BE-Z——S+-A=+—-HLFE wee B3 Hity CEi
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: DEWA
Sales to external customers [NRE P E 2,053,778 330,296 6,829 2,390,903
Intersegment sales DEEBRRBZEE 2,135 - 164,042 166,177
2,055,913 330,296 170,871 2,557,080
Reconciliation: R -
Elimination of intersegment sales D EPER 2 HE B ¥ 8 (166,177)
Revenue WA 2,390,903
Segment results PEEE 181,296 10,222 (52,507) 139,011
Reconciliation: HER -
Finance costs A& B (537)
Profit before tax B 15 A ) 138,474
Segment assets PHEE 1,786,776 130,558 464,409 2,381,743
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and unallocated assets REANMADEEE 18,929
Total assets BEHLE 2,400,672
Segment liabilities PHEE 316,453 7,362 61,162 384,977
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and unallocated liabilities AR MRS EEE 107,160
Total liabilities BEEE 492,137
Other segment information: Hth o BER :
Share of profits and losses of: FE1E T3 A Rl Al R S48 -
Jointly-controlled entities HFEE S QA 27,033 - (1,219) 25,814
An associate —fE Bt = AR - - (24,801) (24,801)
Impairment losses recognised in the KPR R EBE
income statement 12,268 - 9,666 21,934
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH 68,122 406 12,967 81,495
Bank interest income RITHF B A 3,468 283 675 4,426
Investments in jointly-controlled RERZEGIRF 2IRE
entities 120,537 - 17,665 138,202
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZRE - - 42267 42267
Capital expenditure* EwNGE 170,559 75 6,216 176,850

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment

properties.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
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4. BEIHER (#)

Year ended 31 December 2010 Media Trading Others Total
BE-_T-ZFE+-_A=1+—HILEE e 85 Hfth aF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T#ET TET
Segment revenue: ZEWA
Sales to external customers MINAEPHE 1,951,303 954,527 3,831 2,909,661
Intersegment sales DESEBE ZHEE 2,265 - 151,570 153,835
1,953,568 954,527 155,401 3,063,496
Reconciliation: R -
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEBEZEENEIHE (153,835)
Revenue WA 2,909,661
Segment results DEELE 210,889 20,641 16,325 247,855
Reconciliation: R
Finance costs A& R A (2,130)
Profit before tax BR 354 A1 g ) 245,725
Segment assets *BEE 1,698,588 125,249 512,646 2,336,483
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and unallocated assets RAIMKDEEE 12,441
Total assets BERE 2,348,924
Segment liabilities AHEE 307,853 16,587 53,813 378,253
Reconciliation: $ER -
Corporate and unallocated liabilities AR MRS EEE 121,176
Total liabilities RERE 499,429
Other segment information: Ht o BER :
Share of profits and losses of: FE(E T 5 A RS R EE
Jointly-controlled entities HRE DA 30,220 - 1,254 31,474
An associate —HEE QA - - 95D (951
Impairment losses recognised in the WK T RN FEEBE
income statement 5,233 - 9,469 14,702
Depreciation and amortisation FER#E 74,053 442 2,172 76,667
Bank interest income RITH BUA 2,138 139 2,623 4,900
Investments in jointly-controlled RERZEH AR ZIRE
entities 109,798 - 18,147 127,945
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZIRE - - 61,507 61,507
Capital expenditure BEAREY 90,873 495 60,899 152,267
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

4.

LEHWER (&)
i & & H

(@) FSNREFHE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong and Mainland China ERERPER(BEEE)

(country of domicile) 1,845,823 2,363,962
North America b3 426,008 434,836
Australia, New Zealand and Europe SEUM ~ 3778 R & BOM 119,072 110,863

2,390,903 2,909,661
The revenue information above is based on the PR ABERIAT AT R 5 A% -
location of the customers.
(b) Non-current assets (b)) FETEEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong and Mainland China ERERTER(BEEE)

(country of domicile) 807,761 758,120
North America b 274,899 271,141
Australia, New Zealand and Europe SEUM - 3778 R & BOM 3,370 3,362

1,086,030 1,032,623

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of the assets and excludes deferred
tax assets.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net advertising income, after trade discounts;
circulation income, after allowances for returns; net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts; gross rental income

B 75 g 2} BT =E
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received and receivable and the value of services

rendered during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as
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WA(MBAEBRZ2X8) BRES KRAF
B(CHRESZIM) - BITHRA (BHAKEE
B CDEEVWERFE(BEHBREENRE
ZFH)  BREEEKESKRALBURER
AR 2 (B -

WA~ iR ARz 2 2T

follows:
Group
REH
2011 2010
—g--% -—T-%%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue A
Advertising income EEURA 1,597,013 1,482,566
Circulation income BT A 313,282 318,025
Radio broadcasting advertising income BEEBRESERA 22,027 21,606
Sales of photographic products HERTRME® 329,892 954,338
Gross rental income MeWl AL 4,357 3,378
Others H Aty 124,332 129,748
2,390,903 2,909,661
Other income B A
Bank interest income ERITF B A 4,426 4,900
Investment income BERA 631 -
Dividend income from listed KB LETRAKRE
equity investments Z BB A 1,859 988
Dividend income from an unlisted B —IAIE LA
available-for-sale investment HERE ZRBUWA 2,893 -
Others Hity 13,286 9,916
23,095 15,804
Other gains/(losses) Hplz  (&#8)
Fair value gains/(losses), net on: NEEWE (EE) 258
Financial assets at fair value through BRATELRAERER
profit or loss B EE (17,684) 22,042
Derivative financial instruments PTEeMIAE-T/FE
- transactions not qualifying as hedges HHERZIRS (1,320) (6,129
Investment properties BEWE 1,643 3,239
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME WERRZRB
plant and equipment BB 2 431 1,103
Exchange gains, net PE 5 W - 3R 7,552 18,389
(9,378) 38,644
Other income and gains H g A &z 13,717 54,448
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GAIN ON LOSS OF CONTROL IN A SUBSIDIARY

In the prior year, the Group had board control in a
28.95% owned investment and accounted for it as a
subsidiary. In June 2010, in order to focus more on
the Group’s core businesses, the Group reduced its
directorships in that investment to one out of a total of
three. As such, the Group ceased to be able to exercise
control but retains its significant influence over this
investment. Accordingly, this investment has been de-
consolidated from the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and accounted for as an associate since the
date of loss of control. The fair value of the net assets
of the associate at the date of de-consolidation became
the new carrying value of the Group’s investment,
resulting in a gain on loss of control in a subsidiary of
HK$11,474,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010.

KE—ENB QA EF BN NS

RE—FE RNEBHAH2895%E2ESH
SHEEEHE YHEAREE—HAWEA
Al-RZTE—ZTF A AEZHEINASEHE
ZRULER  AEBHERZIEE CESRA
BEE—Z (28E=%) Bt X&EET

BETHEESE BENEREREREERTE
DBt WIRECEBEAKBEGEEVBEHREA
SN Ia%ziﬂﬁ%aikﬁﬁ
B—HBEAR BEQNFEENERES
ARBHZAFEXRAAEEREZHER
B YREBEE_Z—ZTF+_A=+—81
FEEERER—HNB AR 256 k=

11,474,00078 JT °

2010
—E-FF
Notes HK$°000
ligza FET
Net assets de-consolidated: e ARNEEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 15 832
Property under development BRAME 17 151,802
Goodwill GES 18 6,242
Prepayments, deposits and FERNHRIE - -Zek
other receivables H b fE U 5K IR 9,821
Cash and bank balances Re RRITH 1,769
Trade payables JE 1~ 3R IE (8,047)
Other payables and accruals Hh JiE 1~ 3R IB  FE FT R IE (51,053)
Non-controlling interests ?H % (28,611
82,755
Gain on loss of control in a subsidiary KE—FWBARZEHIENKE 11,474
94,229
Satisfied by: AR
Share of net assets ShEEFRE 32,042
Due from an associate JE Y — Bt &8 A &1 SR8 62,187
94,229
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and BREKE RN B R R B A
cash equivalents in respect of the loss RekHeEEER
of control in a subsidiary is as follows: BFREDNAT
Cash and bank balances disposed of LENRE RIRITAER (1,769
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7. FINANCE COSTS

B 75 g 2} BT =E
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7. BERAK

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—B--% -—T-T%
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#T FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts HARIFRNEBHEERZ
wholly repayable within five years RITERRBEZF L 401 1,909
Interest on finance leases [ =N 136 221
537 2,130
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B& #% B S A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBZBBRADEF SR (GEA) ¢
charging/(crediting):
Notes 2011 2010
Wi —g--§ —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHETT TFET
Cost of inventories sold 2 HEFERKAR 831,140 1,412,591
Depreciation e 15 80,370 75,541
Revaluation surplus on land T REFE B
and buildings* (1,528) (4,229)
Changes in fair values of REMELNTEE
investment properties 16 (1,643) (3,239
Impairment losses on At EREREER
available-for-sale investments 23 9,000 7,047
Amortisation of intangible assets* &2 & & # 19 1,125 1,126
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERE & -
Current year KEE 4,962 5,199
Under/(over)provision BAFEREBIR
in prior years GRE) B#E 192 (123)
5,154 5,076
Minimum leases payments under RIFELEHE X+
operating leases: ZEIEBERIE
Land and buildings TH REF 38,987 38,152
Other equipment HM%mE 520 532
39,507 38,684
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 8.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting): (continued)

BRBEBTIE R (42)

AEB2BRBEANENENR, (GTA) : (&)

Notes 2011 2010
i aE —E——F —E—FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Employee benefits expense EBERRAFX
(including directors’ (BREEZEEM (H:F9))
remuneration (note 9)):
Wages, salaries, allowances T& - HEN - 28,
and benefits in kind EEWREF 628,479 612,170
Equity-settled share REEEERERS
option expense 35 614 729
Retirement benefits schemes RKTE ) FT I 5k
contributions 25,649 25,064
Less: Forfeited contributions ORIz R - @)
Net retirement benefits R KAE T B4 FOF BR
schemes contributions** 25,649 25,057
654,742 637,956
Gross rental income Hem ARz (4,357) (3,378)
Less: direct outgoings W BERX 3,380 3,601
Net rental expenses/(income) BemAxz,/ (WKA)F5E 977) 283
Impairment of trade receivables & Us BR 2O B 26 4,828 3,710

* The revaluation surplus on land and buildings and
the amortisation of intangible assets for the year are
included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
income statement.

#* At 31 December 2011, there were no forfeited
contributions available to the Group to reduce its
contributions to retirement benefits schemes in future
years (2010: NiD).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2077 —F——

9. EEME

F+-A=+—H

REBEBARIMARAAES LHRA
(TEmRAD RBEB QRGO FI611EHKE 2

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing FREZEMMSWT
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
&
2011 2010
—E2——-F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T
Fees we 836 720
Other emoluments: Hin i€ :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBINEMER 32,305 31,470
Discretionary bonuses B 1S e AT 1,685 1,730
Employee share option benefits EEBRERT - -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ROKAE ) ET &I 5K 72 72
34,062 33,272
34,898 33,992

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

(@ BIYFHTES

FRARBILIFATEEXNZ2BEWT

2011 2010

—8—-% "T-%F

HKS$°000 HK$°000

FT Fit

Mr. Timothy David Dattels Timothy David Dattels%t 4 - 29
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina BB L + 150 150
Mr. King Richard Yun Zing BRI E 180 180
Mr. Lee Cho Jat FTHERAE 150 150
Mr. Tung Chee Chen BRENEE 120 80
600 589

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2010: NiD).

FA BEABLIFATEENEM

e (—T—FF &) -
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. BEMSD (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive b)) BITEERIHTES
directors

Salaries, Retirement

allowances Employee benefits
and benefits Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses benefits contributions remuneration

e 2l &8 BHRERN

wE  RENEN  BERA BRERN  HEER e @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000
TEX TEL FEL FEL TEX FER

2011 —8--%
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles AR - 9,479 398 - 12 9,889
Ms. Judy Inn Mkt - 2,532 106 - 12 2,650
Mr. Jia Hongping BO¥%EAE - 1,506 53 - - 1,559
Mr. Lai Ting Yiu BRERE - 3,093 177 - 12 3,282
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis e - 2,634 111 - 12 2,757
Mr. Lo Wing Hung BEoKIERE - 8,427 354 - 12 8,793
Mts. Sy Wong Chor Fong BERFRL - 2317 389 - - 2,706
M. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey BRREE - 2,317 97 - 12 2,426
- 32,305 1,685 - 72 34,062
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak MEREE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Leung Chun Ying PRAELE 116 - - - - 116
236 32,305 1,685 - 72 34,298
2010 —B-%F
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles L - 9,203 386 - 12 9,601
Ms. Judy Inn Mokt - 2,458 103 - 12 2,573
Mr. Jia Hongping BUTEE - 1,500 51 - - 1,551
M. Lai Ting Yiu REELE - 3,070 79 - 12 3,161
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis ELib @i - 2,558 107 - 12 2,677
Mr. Lo Wing Hung ExEE - 8,182 343 - 12 8,537
Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong EEERRT - 2,249 567 - - 2,816
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey BRREE - 2,250 94 - 12 2356
- 31,470 1,730 - 72 33,272
Non-executive directors: FHiTES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak EREE 51 - - - - 51
Mr. Leung Chun Ying RIRERE 80 - - - - 80
131 31470 1,730 - 7 33,403
There was no arrangement under which a director FABBEEEHRESRSESRNETAMNES 2%
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration B(ZE—FF :#\) -

during the year (2010: NiD).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors (2010: two directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above,

10.

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

EReSFMNAEVES

FARSFTHNEINRERE=-NES (=T
—ZEF MUES)  EMEFBIHRA LM
Ho: RMEFRE (ZT—FTF =u) -

and two (2010: three) non-director employees. Details
of the remuneration of the two non-director, highest
paid employees (2010: three non-director, highest paid

employees) are as follows:

LI

MANFEFESFTHNERE (T —FF: =
LFEFELFTHNEER)  REZHMEFE

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe  RULKEDET 12,713 16,569
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 858 2,502
Employee share option benefits EEBERERT 222 121
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RKAE F T B4 3K 24 36
13,817 19,228

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

T

MEBATEANZIESESFTHNEER A

Number of employees

EEAH
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,00178 7T £5,000,0007 T - 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,00178 7L £7,000,0007% T 2 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,0017%8 7T 28,000,000 T - 1
2 3
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11. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

11. Fr8%H

EANGHIDEFAREBELZ A ER
T8 M PA16.5% (—F — T4 1 16.5% ) K &
8 o REfb iR 2 RS B 2 TR TV IR A &
ZERZBATHEFE

of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

eSS

operates.
2011 2010
—g-—-% -—T-%%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Group &
Current: BNER -
Charge for the year: FAXE
The People’s Republic of China: R ARAME :
Hong Kong B 6,278 2,449
Elsewhere H b= 6 517
Elsewhere Hibuh = 7,493 16,786
Overprovision in prior years W FEBRERE (13,115) (6,828)
Deferred (note 33) PR (B 5E33) (815) (4,440)
Total tax expense/(credit) for the year FABRBREZ(EE)BEE (153) 8,484
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11. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax charge/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

37 December 2077

11. fTB8% (&)

BARRAREXRBHMBERARMERR, A
FEBRZEERXGE ZE ARG KRG
M/ (BR) 2RBERAX (BR)  BERER
KFEZHREBERAX S (ER) 28R ARE
RAFE (BUAERE) BERB R ZHERMAT ¢

B 75 g 2} BT =E

—E——Ff+ - H=1+—H

Australia,
New Zealand

Hong Kong Mainland China  North America and Europe Total
RN HEE
Bk HE R 1% REN @t
HK$000 % HKS$’000 % HKS$’000 % HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FEx FEx FET Az Az
Group - 2011 AEE--B--%
Profit/(loss) before tax REAEN/ (BR) 137,060 (30,621) 28,849 3,186 138,474
Tax at the statutory tax rate BREEHEHEZHE 2615 165 (7,657) 250 9387 325 1611 506 25956 187
Adjustments in respect of current tax of M/ ER ¢ EMHERL
previous periods (5,919) (4.3) (96) 03 (7,108) (24.6) 8 0.2 (13,115) 9.5)
Profits and losses attributable to jointly- R H A7 & — {2
controlled entities and an associate NEELER - - 6,505 (21.2) (8,785) (30.4) - - (2,280) (1.6)
Income not subject to tax BEMBE WA (3,934) (2.9) (2,309 7.5 (427) (15  (156) (4.9) (6,826) (4.9)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR AT 4,588 33 3,466  (113) 1,354 47 1,79 55.0 11,161 8.1
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & ) B 2 HHEHE (24,393) (17.8) - - - - - - (24,393) (17.6)
Tax losses not recognised TEEIZBBEE 7,480 5.5 - - - - - - 7,480 5.4
Temporary differences not recognised ~ W EER 2 Bk EEE 1,770 13 - - 94 0.3 - - 1,804 13
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's BREEERHXHE
effective rate LHERY/ (%) 2200 16 (9D 03 (5485) (1900 3216 1009  (153)  (0.1)
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11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. FRE®H (&)
Australia,
New Zealand
Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
BN R
BE hERD B REH @it
HKS$ 000 % HK$ 000 % HK$'000 % HK$000 % HK$000 %
THET TET TET TET TET

Group - 2010 AEE--2-%%
Profit before tax B AT 192671 1,305 48,482 3,267 245725
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREFEZHE 31791 165 37 250 17814 368 980 300 30912 207
Effect on opening deferred tax of RE - RHBNEL

increase in tax rate hEzg2 - - - - 10 - - - 10 -
Adjustments in respect of current tax of W EBH 2 EBHERE

previous periods 93 - - - - - G920 e 6828 2D
Profits and losses attributable to jointly- £ %| 2 & k. —

controlled entities and an associate ANl 3 104 0.1 135 103 (10275 (212 - - (10,036) (4.0)
Income not subject to tax BEBH 2B (7988 (4D G QHd 68 08 @60 (140 12400 6D
Expenses not deductible for tax TaNHzEY 6,746 35 3,703 283.8 2723 5.6 20 06 13192 54
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & M/ B ¢ K EE (2889D)  (15.0) - - - - - - (288D 117
Tax losses not recognised VERRHEEE 3,225 17 - - - - - - 3,225 1.2
Temporary differences not recognised I R 2 B EE 1643 (09 73 5.0 528 11 409 125 ©33) 03
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's BREEERHXHE

effective rate HERY/ (5%) 3,441 18 91 453 1040 215 (5968)  (1827) 8484 35
The share of tax attributable to jointly-controlled HEZEH QAR -—HBEERREEHRER
entities and an associate amounting to HK$10,140,000 10,140,000 7T (ZZE —Z F : 13,089,000/
(2010: HK$13,089,000) is included in “Share of TL)  BERFAGRARERANTEMERZS A
profits and losses of jointly-controlled entities and Al —fEEE R AR R EE A -

an associate” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.
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12.

13.

14.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year includes a loss of HK$4,359,000
(2010: HK$5,347,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 36(b)).

B 75 g 2} BT =E
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12. AR RHEE AEMLRF

ARNBEEABLFERGERMASEEREA
A B T R & (B FE36(h)) B ¥ 2 &5 184,359,000
BIL(ZE—FF 1 5,347,00087T) °

13. RS

DIVIDENDS
2011 2010
A —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
Interim — HK4.5 cents (2010: HK3.5 cent) HRE - B RE R4 SE T
per ordinary share ZZ-ZTF : 3581l) 39,118 30,115
Proposed final — HK5.0 cents BERAKRE - SRETER
(2010: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share 508 (ZE—FF : 5.081) 41,864 43,511
80,982 73,626

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

AEREZRERABREALRNRBBRRRE
ERRBFEAREG EHE - TAIEE -

14. XAABAEBREFAEARGEEREF

BRENGMNDRFAARARERRERE
ARMEEN R FREETE BB ZINETFY
BAtE -

BEREHEENDRARGESREREN 2
FAXRRREBEESE ARERZNGE - &5
EEMAZEARMNETFOBLSHESRE
MR ZFARAD BT ZEBREE - AR
RREBEMEFHENAAELEETE N 2
BRERR A EIT RS LR E B REE A
EERAET
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. AQTEEREZEABLESRER (£)
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per

share are based on:

B B K B 580E M J5IR TP B £ E

2011 2010
—g—-% -—T-%%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FET
Earnings g
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AAREBERTEA
holders of the Company, used in the R ENAETE
basic earnings per share calculation TR E AR T 138,668 240,443
Number of shares
RGEE
2011 2010
—g—-% -—T-%%
Shares Bz 5
Weighted average number of ordinary FRNEETERRINE
shares in issue during the year used in FEBAETGE
the basic earnings per share calculation TR EAR G F 869,859,034 855,041,230
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEE - LRER
number of ordinary shares: N9 8
Share options B PR A 19,140,081 25,233,591
888,999,115 880,274,821
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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15. 9% - BERRE

Group NE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
Land and Plant and improve-  equipment Motor
buildings ~ machinery ments  and others vehicles Total
HE & %E-
IHREF HERKE NEEE  RERAL RE CEl
HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§°000
THET THET THET TET TET THET
31 December 2011 “®B--f+t-A=1-H
Cost or valuation: KAEGE:
At 1 January 2011 N_E-—F-f—-H 333,593 476,434 67,546 200,804 8,031 1,086,408
Additions wE - 125,825 9,832 16,627 2813 155,097
Disposals e - (2,059) - (11,582) (3,405) (17,046)
Surplus on revaluation Bt R 3,782 - - - - 3,782
Exchange realignment 3L 1,518 - 64 758 163 2,503
At 31 December 2011 R-B-—-f+ZA=t-H 338,893 600,200 77,442 206,607 7,602 1,230,744
Analysis of cost o valuation: K AEHFAER :
At cost BRAME - 600,200 77,442 206,607 7,602 891,851
At 31 December 2011 R-E-——F+-A=t+—-H
professional valuation LERMhME 538,893 - - - - 338,893
338,893 600,200 77 442 206,607 7,602 1,230,744
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE:
At 1 January 2011 RZE-——F—-F—H - 194,968 43,605 166,783 2,300 407,716
Provided during the year EREE 9,690 44159 11,334 13,182 2,005 80,370
Disposals HE - (2,039) - (5,860) (1,340) 9,259
Write-back on revaluation EftfE (9,690) - - - - 9,690)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 53 014 101 708
At 31 December 2011 R-B--#1t-A=1-H - 237,068 55,052 174,719 3,066 469,905
Net book value: RESE
At 31 December 2011 R-B-—-§5+-A=t-H 338,893 363,132 22,390 51,888 4,536 760,839
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. V¥ BMERDRE (&)
Group (continued) NEBE(Z)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
Land and Plant and improve-  equipment Motor

buildings  machinery ments  and others vehicles Total
HEME &M %E.

THRET HERES % RERHML RE CEl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

TET TET TET TET TET TET

31 December 2010 —E-E5+ZA=1-H
Cost or valuation: KAESEE
At 1 January 2010 RZE-FE-F—H 320,103 440,091 62,040 200,081 7115 1,029,430
Additions HE - 36,969 5,407 14,556 5,002 01,934
Disposals ik - (626) - (13,191) (4,324) (18,141)
Loss of control of KE—RNBR AR E
a subsidiary - - - (2,472) - (2472
Surplus on revaluation ERfEH 11,809 - - - - 11,809
Exchange realignment 5 R 1,681 - 99 1,830 238 3,848
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZEF+-A=1+—H 333,593 476,434 67,546 200,804 8,031 1,086,408
Analysis of cost or valuation: K AEHFEER :
At cost BRAME - 476,434 67,546 200,804 8,031 752,815
At 31 December 2010 W-E-FEE+-f=1-H
professional valuation ZERMLME 333,593 - - - - 333,593
333,593 476,434 67,546 200,804 8,031 1,086,408
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHHE:
At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZF-F—H - 157,151 33813 160,076 2,970 354,010
Provided during the year FREE 9,464 38,404 9,789 15,396 2,488 75,541
Disposals & - (587) - (8,476) (3,337) (12,400)
Loss of control of KE—RKBRAEHE
a subsidiary - - - (1,640) - (1,640)
Write-back on revaluation R (9,464) - - - - (9464)
Exchange realignment EHAE - - 03 1,427 179 1,609
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZET_A=t-H - 194,968 43,605 166,783 2,300 407,716
Net book value: RREE:
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZE+T-A=1-H 333,593 281,466 23,881 34,021 5,731 678,692
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
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15. Y% - BMERRE (&)

Company PN
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and
building improvements equipment Total
TR HENE BH-%E
BT K1 ES CEl
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
THET FHET FHET FHET
31 December 2011 “E-—-f4+-HA=+—-H
Cost or valuation: HABREE :
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H 3,400 1,581 334 5,315
Surplus on revaluation BiERH 200 - - 200
At 31 December 2011 R-ZB--%+-A=t-H 3,600 1,581 334 5,515
Analysis of cost or valuation: RAERBED
At cost BRAE - 1,581 334 1,915
At 31 December 2011 R_E——%+t-A=1—H
professional valuation ZEERE 3,600 - - 3,600
3,600 1,581 334 5,515
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—-A—H - 1,581 334 1,915
Provided during the year FNEE 67 - - 07
Write-back on revaluation BhEE 67) N - (@)
At 31 December 2011 R-E-—-%+-A=1+-H - 1,581 334 1,915
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2011 RZB--f+ZA=t-H 3,600 - - 3,600
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y% - BERRE (&)
Company (continued) KAT (&)
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and
building improvements equipment Total
TR HEME Bl HE
BF #8 &L it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2010 “E-Z25+-A=+—-H
Cost or valuation: RAELIEE
At 1 January 2010 R_E—-FTF—-H—H 1,510 1,581 334 3,425
Surplus on revaluation BiERH 1,890 - - 1,890
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-_A=+—H 3,400 1,581 334 5,315

Analysis of cost or valuation: RAERBES

At cost b WNE] - 1,581 334 1,915
At 31 December 2010 R-E-TF+-A=+—H
professional valuation ZEBXRE 3,400 - - 3,400
3,400 1,581 334 5,315
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHNE

At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZF-A—H - 1,581 334 1,915

Provided during the year FNEE 29 - - 29

Write-back on revaluation BhEE (29) - - 29

At 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZF+=-A=+—H - 1,581 334 1,915
Net book value: BERE:

At 31 December 2010 R-B-FFE+-A=1—H 3,400 - - 3,400
The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and TEBREREBRHOREBEAREZME
equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase BEREHEAFARE——FT_A=+—
contracts included in the total amounts of furniture, BEM RE2 BHELREM2EAFEAR
fixtures, equipment and others at 31 December 2011 3,281,000/ 7L (ZZE—FF : 6,600,000/&7C) °

amounted to HK$3,281,000 (2010: HK$6,600,000).
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The land and buildings of the Group included above
are held under the following lease terms:

B 75 g 2} BT =E

F+-A=+—H

— =

—=

37 December 2077

15. Y% - BMERRE (&)
ERAREEZ L MEFHTIHEFNES

Mainland
Hong Kong China  Elsewhere Total
&% R B A it Hitih & &5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET TFHET T
31 December 2011 —E——f+=-H=+—H
At valuation: A -
Freehold KA - - 97,081 97,081
Long term leases REEE 17,030 21,632 - 38,662
Medium term leases hHEIHE 177,750 25,400 - 203,150
194,780 47,032 97,081 338,893
31 December 2010 —E2-ZF+=-A=+—H
At valuation: A :
Freehold KA ZERE - - 99,741 99,741
Long term leases REHEE 14,100 18,740 - 32,840
Medium term leases FHAEE 179,300 21,712 - 201,012
193,400 40,452 99,741 333,593

The Company’s land and building is situated in
Mainland China and is held under a long term lease.

All of the Group’s and the Company’s land and
buildings were revalued individually at the end of
the reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at
aggregate values of HK$338,893,000 and HK$3,600,000,
respectively, on an open market value, existing state
basis.

During the current year, revaluation surpluses of
HK$11,944,000 and HK$1,528,000, resulting from the
revaluations on the Group’s land and buildings, have
been credited to other comprehensive income and
credited to the income statement (note 8), respectively.
A revaluation surplus of HK$267,000 resulting from the
revaluation on the Company’s land and building has
been credited to the Company’s other comprehensive
income (note 36(b)).

KRATz L MEFA NP EAM - I ARE
HERH -
AEBEARQRAZHBELIHEEFELD
IR EHARABYEXEAERGEME
ETEAAMEERBEL@ENHERE £
338,893,000/ JT. & 3,600,000/ JT ©

RAEER BAEELHEREBFZGEE
4 7 B B 411,944,000 7T K2 1,528,000 JT
BRIt AR b2 U R et AU R (M 5
8) HARALHMEBFHEELEZERER
#2267,0008 L E T AR QR 2 K 2 HE W &=
(FF5E36(b)) °
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REWHE

Group

rE
2011 2010
—g——5 —T-THF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January N—H—HBZEREE 37,246 32,552

Net gain from fair value adjustments NP EFHBW R FE (EEs)

(note 8) 1,643 3,239
Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & (585) 1,455
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEKHEE 38,304 37,246

The Group’s investment properties are held under the
following lease terms:

AEEZREMERTIHEFHES -

Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
58 Hit b @ CEll
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET FET

At valuation: REE -
Freehold KAERE - 29,909 29,909
Long term leases RHMHE 8,395 - 8,395
8,395 29,909 38,304

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2011 by Chung, Chan & Associates,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at an
aggregate value of HK$38,304,000, on an open market
value, existing state basis.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 40(a) to the financial
statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on pages 166 to 167 of this annual report.
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17. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. ¥Ry %
Group
REME
2011 2010
—B--% -—T-T%
HKS$°000 HK$°000
F#T FET
At 1 January n—H—H - 95,882
Additions during the year E/\\$ ARE - 54,411
Exchange realignment PE 5 R & - 1,509
Loss of control in a subsidiary (note 6) 5‘52‘2*?3 Bt B8 2 B 4% ol A (B 5E6) - (151,802)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - -
The property was held under a medium term lease and R A B A - WA BT SR o
was situated in Mainland China. o
18. GOODWILL 18. 79
Group
Ex Y
2011 2010
—®--% -—T-T%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET TFET
Cost and net carrying amount: BN K AR TENE(E -
At 1 January m—HA—H 857 7,099
Loss of control in a subsidiary KE—THE R B bl
(note 6) (B 7x06) - (6,242)
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 857 857
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19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. Hib B EE

Group KE
With
With finite indefinite
useful lives useful life Total
BR &R
AEREH AERAEH &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F#ET FET
31 December 2011 —E——%4+-HA=+-8
Cost: FNANE
At 1 January 2011 and R-ZE——F—HA—BR
31 December 2011 —E-——F+=-A=+—H 22,404 100 22,504
Accumulated amortisation: REEH
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H 9,667 - 9,667
Amortisation provided during FRHHERE
the year 1,125 - 1,125
At 31 December 2011 RZBE——F+-_HA=+—H 10,792 - 10,792
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-RB=+—H 11,612 100 11,712
31 December 2010 “E-ZF+=-A=t-H
Cost: A A E
At 1 January 2010 and RZZE-—ZF-HA—HK
31 December 2010 —ET-ZEH¥+-_RA=+—H 22,404 100 22,504
Accumulated amortisation: 2t
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H 8,541 - 8,541
Amortisation provided during FREHERE
the year 1,126 - 1,126
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZEF+=-A=+—H 9,667 - 9,667
Net book value: RMEFE:
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-FF+_HA=+—H 12,737 100 12,837

As at 31 December 2011, intangible assets with finite

useful lives represented purchased data library,

copyrights, trademarks and domain names. Intangible

asset with an indefinite useful life represents a motor

vehicle registration mark.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. R B AT ZRE
Company
AT
2011 2010
e
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - R ARE 110,150 110,150
Less: Impairment B ORE (105,150) (105,150)
5,000 5,000
Due from subsidiaries JE U BT |8 R B3R IB 1,102,391 1,194,590
Less: Impairment of amounts due W R B A A RIE R E
from subsidiaries (751) (751)
1,101,640 1,193,839
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE R (38,762) (41,792)
1,067,878 1,157,047
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, FElWENMB AR REBEET - 28K
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EETESHE -BERE  FERATELELF
In the opinion of the directors, these advances are BT EREE -
considered as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.
An impairment loss was recognised for an unlisted 85 T 18105,150,0007% 7T (FA 0B 5 (& & 18 /)
investment in a subsidiary with a carrying amount of —ZE—ZF 4 105,150,000 7T) 2 IE L 7
HK$105,150,000 (before deducting the impairment BATREACKERNMEER  BXHER T
loss) (2010: HK$105,150,000) because the subsidiary EEE—BERE - RAEER  BERANRE
had been loss-making for some time. There was no REWHEAGZERBEL ESE -
movement in impairment of investment cost and
impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries during
the current year.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in TEWB R HEBEHREREN 46 o

note 46 to the financial statements.
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 21. REREE AT ZRE
ENTITIES
Group
REME
2011 2010
—g——-& -—T-T&
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET T
Share of net assets JEIEEEFE 122,248 105,684
Due from jointly-controlled entities FE W H B ZE S A RIRIB 75,156 109,391
Less: Impairment of amounts due from A ML RIE A R SR RE
jointly-controlled entities (59,202) (87,130)
138,202 127,945
The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are JEWH RIS AT ZIEAEEIT - 5N ER
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of TEISEHR o
repayment.
Impairment losses were recognised for certain amounts EFEREEES 59,202,000 7T (RNKR R E
due from jointly-controlled entities with an aggregate BB AT (ZE— T 5 : 87,130,000/ 7T) H) JE
carrying value of HK$59,202,000 (before deducting the WHRES AR ZECDEZREER  BEEA
impairment loss) (2010: HK$87,130,000) because the HEESATDEE —BER -
jointly-controlled entities had been loss-making for
some time.
The movements in the provision for impairment of FEUEE S AR ZIEREEENEHNT :
amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are as
follows:
Group
REME
2011 2010
e —TFF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET T
At 1 January mn—H—H 87,130 82,462
Impairment losses made EEHREEE 7,440 3,945
Written off T 88 (35,368) -
Exchange realignment AR - 723
At 31 December Rnt+=-—A=+—H 59,202 87,130
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ENTITIES (continued)

21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

21. REEES QAR Z2RE (&)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities,

all of which are held indirectly by the Company, are as

B 75 g 2} BT =E

— =

37 December 2077 —Z

F+-A=+—H

AAFMERE Y T BHRAEAD YIS
mF :

follows:
Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued shares/ ownership interest Principal
Name registration registered capital attributable to the Group activities
EmRL BROTRGEE rEE
2L Bt B A& A BEMERERBOL TEER
2011 2010
—E--F Z—ZT-ZF
REBZHAMEE (L) People’s Republic RMB30,000,000 49 49 Distribution of
BEREFRARF® of China (“PRC") registered capital print-media
hE AR AR #30,000,0007T publications in
(M+El A ER Mainland China
BITPE MM
TEEEER
I RAELSHT PRC RMB4,080,000 24.98 24.98 Distribution of
BITAREMELNAE H registered capital print-media
AR #4,080,0007T publications in
A E AR Mainland China
BITHEAM
TEEEER @
BN b B PRC RMB2,040,800 12.74 12.74 Distribution of
BRAR# H registered capital print-media
AR #2 040,8007T publications in
HE AR Mainland China
BITPE AN
TEEEER @
IEREELEHE PRC RMB15,400,000 70 70 Provision of
BB R AR H registered capital on-line and
AR #15,400,0007T off-line

EMAER

corporate and
vocational
training and
related services
REAS LR
FWERE

BB 2

K 48 8 AR 75
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

21. REREFHRRZ2RE (F)

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued shares/ ownership interest Principal
Name registration registered capital attributable to the Group activities
EMAEL BROTRGEE r5H
=L Bt B EfEAR BEFEEERE DL TEXB
2011 2010
—®-—-% -T-%TF
Sing Tao Daily Limited Canada CA$10,000 25 25 Newspaper
mex Class A publishing
common shares BERIT
10,0000 7T
BRIAL B
Sing Tao Newspapers Canada CA$2,021,871 50 50 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited mnex Series 1 publishing
common shares WERIT

CA$15,780,809
Series 2
common shares
2,021,871 7T
B1IEEAER
15,780,809 7T
AR

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities

of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,

principally affected the Group’s share of profits

and losses in jointly-controlled entities for the year.

To give details of all the Group’s jointly-controlled

entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

#

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The joint venture agreement relating to the
establishment of JIREEZEHEREER QA
stipulates that all resolutions of its board of directors
must be approved by two-thirds of its members.
As the Company is only entitled to appoint three
members out of five members of the board of
directors, the joint venture has been accounted for as
a jointly-controlled entity.
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21. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

21. REEES QAR Z2RE (&)

AREE 2 KREF QA 2B % & BB o A7

information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: mr
2011 2010
—g—-% -—T-%%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ SEHEESH AR CEERBE
assets and liabilities:
Current assets MEEE 213,774 218,488
Non-current assets EREBEE 67,198 61,839
Current liabilities nBaE (157,933) (169,904
Non-current liabilities FnBBEE (791) (4,739
Net assets BEFE 122,248 105,684
Share of the jointly-controlled DIEHRER AR Z FE -
entities’ results:
Revenue A 406,567 408,885
Other income H g A 1,779 287
408,346 409,172
Total expenses B (372,392) (364,609)
Tax i1E (10,140) (13,089)
Profit after tax B %1 1% 8 FI 25,814 31,474
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22. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

22. A—EBERNT 2RE

Group
REME
2011 2010
—g-—F _—T-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Share of net assets JE(R & EFE 7,125 31,926
Due from an associate JfE Uy — Rel Bt & X B) F0B 35,142 29,581
42,267 61,507
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, E U — P B8 A B 7 ZRIE A I . g 8
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. 4 E B S o
Particulars of the associate, which is held indirectly by AABIEEREE Y —BHYS A ZHBOT
the Company, are as follows:
Percentage of
ownership interest
Place of Registered attributable Principal
Name incorporation capital to the Group activity
=L o i B 37 3t B HERER rEBEM TEXK
FEEEZAESIL
2011 2010
—BE-—-§ —T-FTF
IR EE AR BT PRC RMB13,000,000 28.95 28.95 Property
AR D AI(“XAV) s AR #13,000,0007T development
((#hEEE])# MEBRR

#  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

* The Articles of Association of XAV stipulate that all
resolutions of its board of directors must be approved

by two-thirds of its members.

The Group is only

entitled to appoint one out of three directors in the
board of directors of XAV. Accordingly, XAV has been

accounted for as an associate of the Group.
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22. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table sets out the summarised financial

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

22. REEERNT 2 _RE (&)

AEBZBERRZMBEENBEZBE R

information of the Group’s associate extracted from the BB HE - AT
financial statements of the associate:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Assets BE 768,400 318,411
Liabilities =85 (742,494) (206,391)
Revenue U A _ _
Loss BB (85,666) (3,287)
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23, At HERE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E2——-F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°’000
FET FET
Investment securities: WEFF
Overseas listed equity securities, BN ETRRAE 5
at fair value /NS -] 47 47
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELMRAFES - A AE 37,178 43,723
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value FLEMEBES  BEAFE 7,334 6,318
44,559 50,088

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised
in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$1,017,000 (2010: HK$1,853,000 of which impairment
losses of HK$47,000 were reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the income statement for that
year). In addition, an impairment loss of HK$9,000,000
was directly charged to the income statement for the
year (2010: HK$7,000,000).

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which are designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or
coupon rate.

RAFER  AEBEEEME KT ER
ZAHEERE 2 WEBEEA1,017,0000 7T
—E—FF 1,853,000 EFREEIE
470008 TELBREMEZAREET D> BEEZ
FEMWER) - B B EE 89,000,000
TEHEERAFEENRERTIR (ZE—ZF:
7,000,0007& 7T ) °

R EBRAERAHLEVBEERLE
BEEZMAXRERZBABLFRE -
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23.

24.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices, and the fair values of unlisted
debt securities are based on recent transaction prices.

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Section
129(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the Group holds 90.1% (2010: 90.1%) interest in the
Class A issued share capital of Wang Strategic Capital
Partners (D) Limited (“Wang”), exceeding 20% of the
nominal value of Wang’s issued shares of that class
at 31 December 2011. The Group has no control nor
significant influence over the financial and operating
policies of Wang. Wang is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

The Group’s unlisted equity securities with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$37,138,000 as at 31 December
2011 (2010: HK$43,723,000) are stated at cost less
impairment because their fair values could not be
reliably measured as at the end of the reporting period.
The directors of the Company consider that the fair
value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
intend to dispose of them in the near future.

DEPOSIT FOR AN INVESTMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
paid an amount to Wang as a further investment, which
is subject to completion of the statutory registration
process as at 31 December 2011. In the opinion of the
directors, the investment is intended to be held for a
long term purpose and was classified as a non-current
asset in the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011.
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23.

24.

AHHERE ()

ERRAEEZ AFERAEBETEREE - Mk
tTEBEFZATFERRAARSEERE °

BEBEBTBERTELMNF1200DE AEEBR =
T——F+ A =+—H#EWang Strategic
Capital Partners (D) Limited(rWangJ)90.1%
(ZE2E—FF :90.1%) FRIAR BT A -
BWangiZ BB BTN E B 220% ° A% E
Wang ) B 75 048 & ISR I il e sk B K 5
2 o WangiNFH SRS FEMAKL -

AEBR-_ZT——F+-_A=Z+—BEHEEA
H 537,138,000 7T (ZF — T F : 43,723,000
BIT) 2 I E TR AR B A LAR AR =R E SIE
RERBEAFERREHRTENSFHES -
RRABEERBAFETER SEibstE - AN
EEERTABREERHSE -

RER =

RBZ_ZETNF+-_A=+—BILFE-
AREBERAWangX T HRBAER/E-FRE R
—E——F+-RA=t-8 NEGEKEH
AEBREF - EERS BHREREAR
B Bt R=F——F+-_A=1t—8B &
MBARRARADBERIERDEE -
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25.

26.
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INVENTORIES 25. BE
Group
rEHE
2011 2010
-5 "T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Raw materials R # 87,189 80,467
Finished goods BIRK 1,759 1,584
Inventories held for resale BIEEE2FE 9,047 25,205
97,995 107,256
TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. FEUKBE =X
Group
EEE
2011 2010
— —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
Trade receivables JEE W BR R 574,435 534,486
Impairment A (12,904) (16,087)
561,531 518,399

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

BRTHEP —RARAMNRIN AEHEEEE
FZEBEZETERMEELAET FEH K
R—ER E2RPAERE=MEA &P
BRARSEERE AEEHERREERK
R ERES  UREEEEREHPINE
EREEERR SAEEBET RS ARK
Nz ZEE LR HARANEE 2 EKER
RBAREZTCEFPAR  HABEERR
SHhzBER  AEBEYERERBUERKSTEE
R R REAMERRTTY - BEESA/RE -
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the payment due date,

is as follows:

26. EUWERTR (&)

R|BEHR - BUREFREFIED A 2 REL

DIESNAT

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—g-——% -T-TF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current to 30 days ENERZ= 30K 392,366 368,009
31 to 60 days 31E60K 75,336 55,237
61 to 90 days 61Z90K 37,196 34,529
91 to 120 days 91F 120K 25,626 19,855
Over 120 days FEiR120K 43,911 56,856
574,435 534,486
The movements in the provision for impairment of EWERFRERENEEHMT
trade receivables are as follows:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 16,087 15,216
Impairment losses recognised BRI EE 18 (M5Es)

(note 8) 4,828 3,710
Amounts written off as uncollectible T Re U O] M Hl s Y & 58 (8,017) (2,920)
Exchange realignment BE H 38 B 6 81
At 31 December R+=-ZRA=+—H 12,904 16,087

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011




Notes to Financial Statements

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate carrying amount before provision
of HK$12,904,000 (2010: HK$16,087,000) relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default of payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recoverable.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:
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26. FEWEBRFR (&)

1E B R (E B FE AR BR SR AB BR T (B (R 0B 2B AT
12,904,000/ 7L (ZZ —ZF : 16,087,000/ 7T)
DEBEMBRRERRABRENTF  BHZ
LW FRIBR AT UG o

RAYERENEURROREDTAT

Group

AEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current to 30 days BNERZE 30K 392,366 367,984
31 to 60 days 31E260K 75,048 54,676
61 to 90 days 61E90K 36,376 34,225
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 23,948 18,190
Over 120 days FEiR120K 33,793 43,324
561,531 518,399

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables is an amount
due from an associate of HK$11,193,000 (2010: Nil),
which is repayable on similar credit terms to those
offered to the major customers of the Group.

MEANTERENEEREESHRSZ W
ZRCEFPHER  RELEOHRBCHE -

BAEY ERENERFAEDBRE TEL
EP REEAEBERZNRER I - RIFM
TR ARRESERR REFEHREATR
WERE RAMEAERTESANE -
DARFA 2R EREE -

FATEBEERERBIEREK —HBE AR
FRIA11,193,0008 T (ZE—ZFF  £F) - LK
B EEHEAEEZEEZRFEMA -
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. ERRIE - REe R EAMEWRKIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rE /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
=E2-—-F —ZT-ZTF =ZEB--F "—T-ITF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET TET
Prepayments B R IE 13,013 18,557 655 680
Deposits and other receivables &% & H fth fE Y5 IE 34,852 34,988 798 819
47,865 53,545 1,453 1,499

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28.
PROFIT OR LOSS

Lt EEREBIIERE - L AR ERE
B R B BT A B8 Sl I M R RS B R0 UK

FAIE ©

BAVECARSRZUBEE

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—®——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T
Listed equity securities, at market FHRAFES  RMAE -
value:
Hong Kong i 16,459 34,409
Elsewhere H 5 1,225 1,316
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value FEMEBES  BAFEE 30,630 22,929
48,314 58,654

The above investments at 31 December 2010 and 2011
were classified as held for trading. The fair values for
the above unlisted debt securities as at 31 December
2011 were determined based on the quoted prices from
investment banks.
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

37 December 2077

B 75 g 2} BT =E

—E——Ff+ - H=1+—H

20 RERRESEEEH

Group Company
wE ¥ NN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F 2T B85 ZE—-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHE 368,821 383,893 1,011 529
Non-pledged time deposits IR T BT 171,187 182,113 - -
Cash and cash equivalents HehReSFEHEE 540,008 566,006 1,011 529

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$62,255,000 (2010:
HK$90,170,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

RBFERR ZEBUARB(TARE]D &
Bz E RIBITHE 8 562,255,000 7T (=
T —F 4 190,170,000 7T) - ARBEIW A B
MEBAEMER - A - BRIEFRBKEZH
EERGHREE SERNEEERTE A
SEEATSBEREETINERER ZRTT
BAREEIBASEME o

FR|TZRAERBARTERNRZFR
AR -EMENMERRASE GRS HN
FOEF-HEZEAAE  URZBZEH
TEBTE RN R ERERA B - SRITHE B R IF R0 17
HRAEEBREFNRT  HYBIBMKELCHK -
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30. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the payment due
date, is as follows:

30. ENRAKRRE

RBEHR  BANEARERREFIAZIHA

ZHREDTESIT

Group

REME
2011 2010
—g—-% -T-%F
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Current to 30 days ENERZ= 30K 105,597 114,416
31 to 60 days 31E260K 18,304 17,399
61 to 90 days 61E90K 1,580 710
91 to 120 days 91ZF 120K 2,904 446
Over 120 days BiE120k 6,535 7,038
134,920 140,009

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are FENZEI T E B —RERCOBEE -

normally settled on 60-day terms.
31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average payment term of three months.
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32. FINANCE LEASE AND HIRE PURCHASE 32. MEHYRHEEASYEAZIE
CONTRACT PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its furniture, fixtures and AEEHEEFERER A TEM £EBAR
equipment for its media business. These leases are e ZEMHABRMEMRY T 2HBEAE—Z
classified as finance leases and have remaining lease AERE -

terms ranging from one to five years.

At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease RZTE——F+-A=+—H REHEEY
payments under finance leases and their present values ARZKEERAEREBENT :

were as follows:

Minimum Minimum  Present value Present value
lease lease of minimum of minimum
Group payments payments lease payments lease payments
BiEES mEHEE
A58 BER mEHEE ZHRE ZHE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--F —Z-ZF —2—-F% —Z-ZF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Amounts repayable: FEEEFIE :
Within one year —FR 1,196 1,864 1,121 1,670
In the second year FF 827 2,136 793 2,012
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-ZENF (BREERMTE) 1,912 3,048 1,890 3,551
Total minimum finance lease payments &HIEFE & 2% 3,935 7,648 3,804 7,233
Future finance charges AREEER 131) (415)
Total net finance lease payables REROEFNFELTEE 3,804 7,233
Portion classified as current liabilities B AR AE 21 (1,121) (1,670)
Non-current portion ERE 2,683 5,503
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32. FINANCE LEASE AND HIRE PURCHASE 32 MEHYRHABRANENSZE(Z)
CONTRACT PAYABLES (continued)

Other information: HEEE -
2011 2010
—g--% —E-2F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity rate (%) Maturity
BERR%) I BB (%) i
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Current B &g 0-18 2012 1,121 0-18 2011 1,670
Non-current JEENER 0-18 2016 2,683 1-18 2015 5,563
3,804 7,233
All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong B BhA T 4 FE 1 2B Th LU ST EHE - IR E
i i i 7 Y JE T AR / a 1
Kong dollars a.nd bear interest at fixed interest R RIS o AEE Y BEIE % B -
rates. The carrying amounts of the Group’s current HAT(EHEE - AEm Y IERIHIE 2 > BEmE(E
borrowings approximate to their fair values. The /EQHZ\\EFTE R S )

carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group’s
non-current borrowings are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
AREE DNFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——F% T T - Z—T-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET FHET T
Finance lease payables B & AR A T FRIE 2,683 5,563 2,431 4,951
The fair value of finance lease payables has been BN ENSIE Y ATV ERE SRS =B,
calculated by discounting the expected future cash BIEE R KBS R EHE -

flows at the prevailing interest rates.
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33. DEFERRED TAX 33. IEHEBLIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FRELERBEEREEZZEHWOT :

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities ELEBREERE
Group NE

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
an additional
Depreciation  interest in

allowance in a jointly-
excess of related  controlled Revaluation Recognition
depreciation entity of properties of tax losses Others Total
WEAE
BHLT
BRER BiMER
il 14 iR HEBR
REAHE AVERER EXREIES ZER Eth @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF-A-H 40,580 4,864 24,877 (38313) 4,546 36,554

Deferred tax charged/(credited) — FARKERRA
to the income statement during ~ ¥1B/ (Gt A) 2

the year (note 11) ERERE (FrsE) 2,158 - (338) (1,712) (4,546) (4,438)
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREEEMR

revaluation reserve during BERNRZ

the year BENE - - 5,509 - - 5,509
Exchange realignment 5 HE 16 - - ) - 14
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ-%%F

1 January 2011 TZA=t-Bk

—f——£-F-R 42,754 4,864 30,048 (40,027) - 37,639

Deferred tax charged/(credited) ~ FARKEEKR
to the income statement during ng/GtA) 2z

the year (note 11) ERLHE (1) 15,736 - (849) (14,431) - 456
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREEEMR

revaluation reserve during RNk 2z

the year ERHE - - 2,788 - - 2,788
Exchange realignment EH AR 2 - - - - 2
At 31 December 2011 RZB--5+ZB=1-R 58492 4,864 31,987 (54,458) - 40,885
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33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

33. IEIERIE (42)

Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Group rE
Depreciation in
excess of related Recognition
depreciation  Revaluation of tax
allowance of properties Provisions losses Total
HBERAE
TERHE REEBE
ZHE EXRE/ES Bt ZHBR st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET TET FET FET
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE-ZT§5—-HA—H 768 - 3,419 7373 11,560
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRRKERA

to the income A/ (H0R) 2

statement during the year BRI (Fisk1)

(note 11) (83) - (126) 211 2
Exchange realignment R AR - - 304 (26) 278
At 31 December 2010 and R-Z-%F

1 January 2011 +-A=+—-Hk

“F-——%-f—-H 085 - 3,597 7,558 11,840
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRRKERR

to the income HA/ (H0B) 2

statement during the year BRI (Fiak1)

(note 11) (679) - 2,307 (357) 1,271
Deferred tax charged to FAREESR

asset revaluation EERARZ

reserve during the year ERERE - 92) - - 92)
Exchange realignment B H A - - 13 ®) 8
At 31 December 2011 R-ZZE——F+-A=+—-H 6 92) 5917 7,196 13,027
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33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$899,931,000 (2010: approximately HK$915,194,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$536,138,000 (2010: approximately
HK$565,721,000) have not been recognised as they
have arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and in the opinion of the
directors, it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

At 31 December 2011, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2010: Nil) for taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or jointly-controlled
entities or its associate.

There are no income tax consequences attaching

33.
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IEIERLIE ()
EERBEE (&)

RBERR AEBEREBEEZMIBEEED
899,931,000/ 7L (Z & —Z F : £1915,194,000
BT ERAANKEEAREEEZ AR
ZARREF AF AR MEBEEDREET
BEEBEEEE —BRKEZAR  MAEEERA
EAKREEEAR KB ENREEIEN
FERLFE - H0 8E h B 7S B 18 £9536,138,00078
T (ZFE—FF 1 49565,721,000/ 7T) R IE
LEMIBEE °

RZEB——F+ZA=+—H IERLEHEH
AETHBAR - KFRHEG QRSB ERRZR
EHAMNOEMNTEZERXRERRLHREA
BE(CE-ZF :8) -

AREAE R A B RE T E 5B

to the payment of dividends by the Company to its A=
shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Shares &%)
2011 2010
—®--% _—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Authorised: EERA
2,354,256,546 ordinary shares 2,354,256,5460% & 8 i
of HK$0.2 each BRME{E0.2B T 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable 1,291,486,908% & X {H0.175 7T
cumulative convertible preference Z5% 218 7] BE [B] 7] 8 A B SR iR
shares of HK$0.1 each 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRBRRKA
869,030,517 (2010: 870,112,537) 869,030,517/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —T-TF: 870,112,537[&)
LA AR EE. 2B T 173,806 174,023
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

34. RA(#)

total of 2,784,000 of its own shares through the
Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$5,123,000. The highest and
lowest prices per share paid by the Company for the
purchase of shares during the year were HK$2.25 and
HK$1.10, respectively.

All the repurchased shares were cancelled by the
Company upon such repurchase and, accordingly,
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the nominal value of these shares. The premium
payable on the repurchase was charged against the
share premium account.

The directors considered that, as the Company’s
shares are trading at a discount to the expected net
asset value per share, the repurchase of shares would
be beneficial to the Company.
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Shares (continued) B3 (&)
During the year, movements in the Company’s issued EFERNARD BIRRE AN Z Z#shan T -
ordinary share capital are as follows:
Number of Issued Share
ordinary ordinary premium
shares in issue share capital account Total
Notes BT 2R 7]
izt EERHA EERRA RER @
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2010 R-ZZ-ZF—-A—H 845,837,537 169,168 - 169,168
Exercise of share options TR AR E 24,275,000 4,855 25,421 30,276
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-ZTF+ZA=T—HER
1 January 2011 —2——%—-HA—H 870,112,537 174,023 25,421 199,444
Repurchase of shares EERMR (a) (2,784,000) (557) (4,560) (5,123)
Exercise of share options IR R (b) 1,701,980 340 1,937 2,277
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——-%+-A=1+-H 869,030,517 173,806 22,792 196,598
Notes: W&t -
(a) During the year, the Company repurchased a @ REFERN AR 7?5 AT PR AR & R

19 & $£2,784,0000% + 4R (E 49 A5,123,00078
VIVRIVN/N TEZIKEFW&W%@ 0 B 19 4 A%
& MERIEERD B A2.258 T X1.108TT ©

REBERNDEEHARBRARD
AlzEBITRARREZER D 2™
EU/U@ c BRI RN ZEBERNEE

EEZRR BNARA Zﬂxfﬁutﬂxiﬁﬁﬂﬁ
%ﬁfﬁz%ﬂ%ﬁ%t Rl SEIRNN
!
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

35.

Shares (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) During the year, the subscription rights attaching
to 1,701,980 share options were exercised at the
subscription prices ranged from HK$0.73 to HK$1.16
per share (note 35), resulting in the issue of 1,701,980
shares of HK$0.2 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$1,507,000. An amount of
HK$770,000 was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options granted under the schemes are included
in note 35 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 14 June 1996, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons
including the employees and directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries. The exercise period of
the share options granted under the Old Scheme
is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain holding period and ends on the tenth
anniversary of the date of grant of the share options.

As at 1 January 2011, there were 552,000 share options
outstanding under the Old Scheme. During the year, no
share option was granted under the Old Scheme, and
352,000 outstanding share options previously granted
under the Old Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.84
per share lapsed.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had 200,000
share options outstanding under the Old Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.02% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date, and the
Company entitled the holders to subscribe for shares
of the Company at any time during the period from 1
June 2002 to 21 March 2012. The subscription price,
subject to adjustments and payable upon exercise, is
HK$0.5640 per share.
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34. WA ((E)

35.

R (&)
BiaE (&)

(b)) RAFER B TFRE#EZEREL701,980
REHWITE - TEEN T ER.73EBITLELL6
BT (KT FE35) » BUE 3 771,701,980 & I
AEA2BETLZRGD  BRESNREEMNR
B 32 AT A1,507,00078 7T © 17 1F 5% 5 B A% 7
% £ %770,0008 THERERBERS
B BER -

fRIE

BREARABBRES S RREIELER
BZHBENMBHRRM T3S -

BREE

RRBR—NANFRA M A RABERE
B ([EFED  RRAAERAL(BEAR
AREEMHBARZEBERES) RHE KR
MER - RIFEFER D ZBREZITESRA
EXER TEIRRXBEFEHEREER
BEEHZATBEFEEmL -

RZE——F—HA—HB BEEFEELEM
M ARATIE 2 BE IR 5552,0000% c RAFE A -
WEBBENERLIERE - LRREEE
B ARITEE 2 AR E352,00008 (TTEE A
FR0.84B L) BEKRRK -

/7

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 ' AQFIRE
ST EIR W M R 760 2 B AR 4 5200,000%
HARBRZENE BT LRI AL0.02%
HEEAEER-_ZETE - XA—RE_Z
——F A+ BHHEIWERAREAR
AR ETFEREXN2ERBEE (A
F ) B0.56408 7T °

i
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

In compliance with the amended Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, on 28 May 2002, the Old Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted.

The following is a summary of the New Scheme:
1. Purpose

The New Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with the
participants whose contributions are or may be
beneficial to the growth of the Group.

2. Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following classes
of participants to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company:

(i) any part-time or full-time employee or officer
of any member of the Group or of any
associate;

(ii) any director (executive or non-executive) of
any member of the Group or of any associate;
or

(iii) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or other
adviser of, or consultant or contractor to, any
member of the Group.

3. Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the New Scheme (excluding options
which have lapsed) (the “General Mandate”).
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35.
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RiIFEETRUFEE (BER) R_TFT-
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M2 BN RERLEERAKEME
M SIEH 2 ERMKEBEEER - WA
B2EEZRBEEELRESRELERR
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BEFERAAEERERZ2EEZERR
FAE -

2. BHAE

EET 2 EMBEHE THSEE R
ZAEMATBEABRE AREAR A
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() ASBEXERFHEMBERRZ
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

3.

Total number of shares available for issue
(continued)

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
General Mandate by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.
The Company may also seek separate approval by
its shareholders in a general meeting for granting
options beyond the General Mandate or the
refreshed limit provided that the options in excess
of the limit are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders in
a general meeting in the manner as prescribed
in the Listing Rules, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of share
options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.

Period within which the shares must be taken
up

The period during which a share option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme shall be the period set out in the relevant
offer letter provided that such period expires no
later than the tenth anniversary of the date on
which it is granted.
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35. IBIRESTE (&)

3. AHBTZIROBE(E)

AR AIEEAEEERRAE ERE
ARBBRYEEH —REE - AR A
NAERRAE EXTTREERRIE
BHBE - REEREHNRE < BRE -
HEBZRBEIBREER TES K%
BERTFE RIS E 2 2 HE -

AR B 3 5t &) R AR & B E A7) H 18 A
AEEREMARITERDAFITE
ZHBABEREETEMA TETZRN
HEBERE THEBACDETHRNZ
30% °

4. BBHRERZUEZR®G

EEM+_EAMER2EERTER
MERL 2BEE (BREETTEMERTT
82 R HE) M3TT RAS BT 2 B 4R 2K -
THREBEEHDHITRN 21%  ERE
ETHRAREERRNBERRNE RTE
i8R ER S

5. XARBROZME

RIBF MG AT EBREZHE
RBEBREZKMEMIIAZEE HEZF
HEAVAETERBRERXLBERRTE
FEMm
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

6. Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall be the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant of the relevant
share options;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the relevant share options; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
7. Remaining life of the New Scheme
The New Scheme will expire on 27 May 2012.

A resolution was passed by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on 27 May
2005 to refresh the General Mandate limit to 10% of the
number of the shares of the Company in issue as at 27
May 2005. Such refreshment of the General Mandate
limit will enable the Company to grant options carrying
the rights to subscribe for up to a total of 91,717,753
shares (adjusted due to consolidation of the Company’s
shares on 18 May 2006) of the Company under the New
Scheme and other scheme(s) of the Company, if any.

At 1 January 2011, there were 33,262,500 share options
outstanding under the New Scheme. During the year,
no share option was granted under the New Scheme. A
total of 1,701,980 outstanding share options previously
granted under the New Scheme with exercise prices
ranging from HK$0.73 to HK$1.16 per share were
exercised, resulting in the issue of 1,701,980 new
ordinary shares for a total consideration, before
expenses, of HK$1,507,000, which was received by the
Company.
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BRELIRBEARAEREFTE AR
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FE) -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had 200,000
(2010: 552,000) and 31,560,520 (2010: 33,262,500) share
options outstanding under the Old Scheme and the New
Scheme, respectively, with an exercise period from 1
June 2002 to 11 April 2020 and exercise prices ranging
from HK$0.5640 to HK$1.1600 per share. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 31,760,520 (2010: 33,814,500) additional shares
of HK$0.2 each, which represented approximately
3.65% of the existing issued ordinary share capital of
the Company at the end of the reporting period.
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35. IBIRESTE (&)

MN-TB——F+-A=+—8B X272 53R
BEFEIER L MM ARTT 28R 200,000
(ZZF—FF :552,0000%) &R &2
H R AT R 2 BB AR R #£31,560,520/% (=&
—Z4F 1 33262,5000%) - ZEBREZITER
BT - NA—HEZ-_ZEZ_ZTFMNWA
+—H1E - TEEN FER0.5640TTE1.1600
BIL - BEITEHRT 2 ERER &2 HE
AABEBRBZBRAGERETRTERMEE.2
BT 2 BEINR1D31,760,5200% (ZF —F F ¢
33,814,5000%) " IE AR B R BMEBARRELDS
BITERRRALI3.65% ©
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year, movements of share options granted
to the directors and eligible employees under the share
option schemes of the Company are as follows:

35.

Number of share options

BIRESE (E)

FR ZSEFRAERREREARABRE

-

HBEET BRES

BT

BREYE Exercise
Date of price of
grant of At1 Lapsed Exercised At 31 share
Name or category share January during during December Exercise period  options
of participant options 2011 the year the year 2011 of share options g‘%’ote é
i
BRE R-B--F R-B-—-F THE
SRELLIEN RHAM -A—-H EREX EnfiE t=A=1-A BRETER (Wi
HK$
AT
Directors
£
Under the New Scheme:
REE
Ms. Judy Inn 27-06-06 1,500,000 - (500,000) 1,000,000 27-06-07 to 26-06-16 0.9200
MxExt
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 23-05-05 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 23-05-06 to 22-05-15 0.7760
Bl et
Mr. Lo Wing Hung 04-05-05 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000 04-05-06 to 03-05-15 0.7700
EXERE
Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey 28-10-05 1,180,000 - - 1,180,000  28-10-06 to 27-10-15 0.7300
Total 21,680,000 - (500,000) 21,180,000
= (Note 2)
(Wit2)
Other employees (in aggregate)
EtiEE (5 1)
Under the Old Scheme: 03-12-01 352,000 (352,000) - - 19-02-02 to 23-12-11 0.8400
RIEEE: 01-03-02 200,000 - - 200,000 01-06-02 to 21-03-12  0.5640
552,000 (352,000 - 200,000
Under the New Scheme: 03-05-05 4,372,500 - - 4372500 03-05-06 to 02-05-15 0.7700
REHEE 22:07-05 500,000 - (500,000) - 2:07-0610 210715 07740
28-10-05 2,060,000 - (120,000) 1,940,000 28-10-06 to 27-10-15 0.7300
19-01-06 1,050,000 - (300,000) 750,000 18-01-07 to 18-01-16 0.8200
12-04-10 3,600,000 - (281,980) 3,318,020 12-04-11 to 11-04-20 1.1600
11,582,500 - (1,201,980) 10,380,520
(Note 3)
(Wit3)
Total 12,134,500 (352,000 (1,201,980) 10,580,520
At
Grg;d total 33,814,500 (352,000 (1,701,980) 31,760,520
&
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

36.

Notes:

1.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the date on which
the options were exercised was HK$2.20.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised was HK$2.23.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$614,000 during the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$729,000).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,

the Company had 31,510,520 share options outstanding

under the schemes,

which represented approximately

3.76% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 41 of these financial
statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents (i)
the excess of the nominal value of the shares
issued by Perfect Treasure Holdings (BVD) Limited
in exchange for the aggregate nominal value
of the issued capital of subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1996,
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares,
amounting to HK$9,899,000, and (ii) the credit of
HK$488,930,000 arising from the reduction of share
premium account in 2003 less the distribution
of HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits of
HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000
arising from the repurchase of shares during the
years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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35. IBIRESTE (&)
Hst

1. BEREZITEEARARMR - BEITARN
ARABBARHBR 2 EMBLUE S MIELFHE -

2. ARBBRNEZREBRERTENHREB
HAZ A ) DO 9 UL B /82.208 7T °

3. ARBIBRDERERBREETENBREB
Hi 2 A A 04 P W B /52,2308 7T

AEEREE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—8L1Lt
FEANBERBRERX A614,0008 T (= —
T4E 1 729,000/ 70) ©

PHEARFBRERBE  AQRRENERE
i AR 1T 2 B AR £ 31,510,5208% + fh
NRARE BB BT 2D 43.76% °

36. #HE
() ~£E

REBRAFELBEFEZEBEHRRE
&E PR 2N AMBERERF4NARZ
ERDEHEK -

REEH AR BAG) Perfect Treasure
Holdings (BVD LimitedZ 1T &7 2 E{E -
BBARRRDETA - BIEKRRBIE
—hAWNAANFEEEHBRENBERAFE

BIIRALEEZ IS - ©581£9,899,000
Bt MEGMH-ZTE=ZF YRG5 EE
R T B 4 2.488,930,00078 JT 3 BR AL &= —
TE=F 5K 218,181,000/ 7T A MR E
ETENF - ZETLFR
F+-_A=Z=+—BLEFERNRAEDLDRD

5 B 251,073,000 JT  34,307,0007%8
JC K 31,443,00078 JC °

77/\
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36. RESERVES (continued)

F+=A=+—4

36. f#18 (&)

(b) Company (b) AT
Share Contri- Asset Share Proposed
premium buted revaluation option  Retained final
Notes  account  surplus reserve reserve profits  dividend Total
k& BE BRE B
i RER  BARR  EfRK i REEN  RHRE @it
HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS§'000 HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TErn TEn
At 1 January 2010 RZE-TF-A-H - 508876 400 18711 472268 35,419 1,025,680
Total comprehensive ERRENEAE
income for the year - - 1919 - (5,347) - (3,426)
Issue of ordinary shares ErERk 34 25421 - - (9,696) - - 15,725
Equity-settled share hEEEERETH
option arrangements 35 - - - 729 - - 729
Final 2009 dividend BERZ-FENE
declared RRE - - - - GH (25419 25473)
Interim 2010 dividend “E-RETARE 13 - - - - (G0 - B0I)
Proposed final 2010 RE-Z-5%
dividend RES 13 - - - - @5 4351 -
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-FFTAZT-H
1 January 2011 kz%--£-A-H 540 508876 235 074 393241 3511 983,118
Total comprehensive EERENELE
income for the year - - 267 - (4,359) - (4,002)
Repurchase of shares BERR 34 (4,566) - - - - - (4,560)
Issue of ordinary shares BILER % 1,937 - - (770) - - 1,167
Equity-settled share HEEEERERH
option arrangements 35 - - - 014 - - 014
Final 2010 dividend BERZ-F-%F
declared REBE - - - - ) @51 (©B54)
Interim 2011 dividend S R 13 - - - - () - (3918)
Proposed final 2011 RE-_2——%
dividend REBE 13 - - - - s 4164 -
At 31 December 2011 Ro8--F+2A=t-H 2,792 508,876 2,502 9,588 307,868 41864 893,580
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36. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
(i) the excess of the fair value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor,
amounting to approximately HK$104,950,000, and
(i) the credit of approximately HK$488,930,000
arising from the reduction of share premium
account in 2003 less the distribution of
approximately HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the
debits of HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and
HK$31,443,000 arising from the repurchase of
shares during the years ended 31 December 2008,
2007 and 20006, respectively. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

The share option reserve of the Group and the
Company comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred
to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Group entered into finance
lease arrangements in respect of property, plant and
equipment with a total capital value at the inception
of the leases of approximately HK$3,282,000 (2010:
approximately HK$4,632,000).
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36. f#fE (&7)
(b) AT (#)

KRR ZEABBEBORRB /G LT
AR E— AN NFEBEAMKEZK
BRAIZBRHAFE sHARA AR
ZERDMBETZROABEZ ZFE - AL
104,950,000 7T * RGDZF T = F H|H
1% 17 ' {8 BR AT EE 4 2 £9488,930,000/% 7T
HEERRE ST ZE=ZF DK Z4918,181,000
BILTUNMREBEZ_ZETNFE —_FTF+
ER_BERFET_A=F+—HILFE
A B B8 [ B% 17 i 22 BlRL 51,073,000 7T
34,307,000/ 7T 231,443,000/ 7C © \RIEH
RE-—NAN—FRaEFEEHERT) - AR
RAEETBERT  UBARBEBKE
EH DR °

AEBRALRBERERERRBED R
BERRTEZEREZAFE FRHM
R M T2.48 BAAR D BER 2 5K
ZRHZEHABR - -HHEBREET
® - ZeBRNERERNEER: FHH
BREERI M poR W - RISEEREER -

37. RERERERME

TEHFRERS

FR AEBERYVE BELRBTLHE
AT REERBBEZ2EARABENA
3,282,000/ 70 (ZF —FF : 44,632,000 7T) °
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38.

39.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 38. B ISIER
Group Company
A% A2
Notes 2011 2010 2011 2010
it —E--F —T-%F —E--F —Z-%F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET TFET FAET
Guarantees to banks for trade RHERRER R
facilities granted to subsidiaries BHEEMBRTEL 2 ER - - 268,700 268,700
Guarantees to banks for treasury HNBARER ZHE
facilities granted to subsidiaries EEmBITEL 2 ER - - 1,389,000 1,389,000
- - 1,657,700 1,657,700

Notes: HiE -

(a) At 31 December 2011, the Company had (@ RZE——F+ZA=+—0 Xx2apH
outstanding corporate guarantees of approximately MEARER —RESHEEHIET ﬁ 5’5
HK$268,700,000 (2010: approximately BRI 2 1~ AV IR #9268,700,0007 7T (=
HK$268,700,000) issued in favour of banks to secure T4 ¢ 49268,700,0008 L) c R T —— E
general trade facilities granted to its subsidiaries. TZA=+—0  ZEHWER 7 EEBAEE
These subsidiaries have utilised the facilities to 46,120,000 7T (ZF —ZF F : 5,663,000/8
the extent of approximately HK$6,120,000 as at 31 JL) °
December 2011 (2010: HK$5,663,000).

(b) At 31 December 2011, the Company had (b)) RZE—F+ZA=+—H xRalHx
outstanding corporate guarantees of approximately MELARERZHEEEHRITE 5'5 i b
HK$1,389,000,000 (2010: approximately 2 a ¥R £91,389,000,0008 70 (ZF —F
HK$1,389,000,000) issued in favour of banks to secure F 1 #91,389,000,000 70) c R =T — —4F
treasury facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The +=A E‘f’ H ZEWBA jlﬂf\@jﬁﬁ £
subsidiaries have not utilised the facilities as at 31 MEE(ZE—FF: &) -

December 2011 (2010: Nil).

At 31 December 2011, guarantees given by the RZE——F+_A=+—8 "  ARagHK

Company to banks in connection with facilities BARERRBANMERHTRITIOER

granted and utilised by its subsidiaries amounted to 6,120,000 7T (ZF —F%F : 5,663,000% 7T) B

HK$6,120,000 (2010: HK$5,663,000) are repayable on ABSKIFEE o

demand.

PENDING LITIGATIONS 39, ERZFHR2ZFDR

The Group has received claims made against certain AEBEZEEETHBRARRS Rz mE R

subsidiaries for damages in respect of alleged
defamation. Based on legal opinion, the directors are of
the opinion that adequate provision has been made in
the financial statements to cover any potential liabilities
arising from the litigations.
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain investment properties
(note 16) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to
fifteen years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease rental receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling
due as follows:
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40. REBNZTH
() ERAHEA

AEERBEKEHEOLZHBELETRE
M (MaE16)  KEBZHORH —F
THEF - BEOZHER—RRAEETEAEX
NRES THREESUTEHRERT
SR e

RZEB——F+-_A=+—RH X&H
RER T HMEER 2 TRIRELEH
MR Z AKRIERSBRERS

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FHET TFET
Within one year —FA 3,466 3,249

In the second to fifth years, E-_ZERNF (BREREEMF)

inclusive 8,757 7,657
After five years hFi% 7,028 8,759
19,251 19,665
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and printing equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for these properties and
printing equipment are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to seven years.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

0. FEMEWRH (&)
) FEREEA

AEBREBEEEROLHEEE THA
EMEREBIRE KHEAZYWERD
IR HHORB—ELF -

W-T——%+-A=+—F A%H
iR 550 T 51 28 5 7 2 O A 4 R

operating leases falling due as follows:

MENZ R RKEESEERS

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—g—-% -—T-%§
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 18,343 37,462
In the second to fifth years, F_EZERF (BEEEMSE)
inclusive 31,761 22,875
After five years hFi& - 414
50,104 60,751
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had R|EBR  AAREERLEHERAE (=
no operating lease commitments (2010: Nil). T—FF  |) o
41. COMMITMENTS 41. F&IE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 40(b) above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B b XXM sE40(b) BT 2t 2 48 & A
SERBEHREIATALE -

EAESN K

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—EB——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Capital commitments: B AR

Contracted, but not provided for BRI AER B 2,630 79,927
Authorised, but not contracted for EERERREY 44,366 -
46,996 79,927

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had

no capital commitment.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions
with related parties during the year:
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42 BEATRS
() BREIBRRZEMMMAFRZZFHELE

BN REBERFATERBEALIY
TIZERRS :

Group
rEE
Notes 2011 2010
Mt —E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Rental income received from B — 8 LR H] A7)
a jointly-controlled entity ZBWHES WA €) 564 542
Advertising income received 2K B — & B & 2 7
from an associate ZBEWESKA ) 11,088 -
News service fee income ke HRES AT
received from ZEBERFERBEAWA
jointly-controlled entities (ii) 18,504 17,007
Service fee income received K B L EEH| A A
from jointly-controlled Z B W ARTE & R WA
entities (iii) 610 -
Service fee income received R E — A& A A
from an associate Z B W E B WA (iii) 3,960 —
Notes: Biat -
(1) The rental and advertising income were H MHekBESEWABEHEZAZERITME
determined between the parties with reference BRE e
to the prevailing market price.
(i) The news service fee was charged on an annual (D) FERGERRBEEABETBREHBZESF
fixed amount basis pursuant to the relevant news ERKE -

service agreement.

(iii)

The service fee was charged at cost plus a pre-
determined mark-up.

(i) AR5 B FAR B A AN DN T8 E AR UL B o
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s balances with jointly-
controlled entities and an associate as at the end
of the reporting period are disclosed in notes 21,

22 and 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

(¢) Compensation of key management personnel of

42. BEANLTRS (&)
(b BEEEATZREELE:

AEFBRARZEG QR L —BEE R
RBmEHRZ BRFE D BRI HREK

BsE21 ~ 22 K26 5T o

(© AEBTIEZEEBABZHMH

the Group:

2011 2010
—F——F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
Short term employee benefits R B A 34,826 33,920
Post-employment benefits RIK1& BT 72 72
Share-based payments AR 9 2 EE W 2 5 3K - -

Total compensation paid to MEZEEBABLZMNZ
key management personnel & 4258 34,898 33,992

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the financial statements.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011

EEMeHEMFBERMBERRM TORE -



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, % BmTE o *E
The carrying amounts of each category of financial RBEAR  SELHTENEERELT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Group KEE
31 December 2011 —_E——&+=-A=+—H
Financial assets BEEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss -  Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BRAVEZA
Notes REBNME EXNE  AHHEN
Wi BE-REEE  EBUWEE  HBEE &5t
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
TAT TAx FAx FET
Investments in jointly-controlled entities ~ H £ R H| A AAIRE 21 - 15,954 - 15,954
[nvestment in an associate R—EBENTNEE 22 - 35,142 - 35,142
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 23 - - 44,559 44,559
Trade receivables FEYBR L 26 - 561,531 - 561,531
Financial assets included in prepayments, SIEEBNHE  He kK
deposits and other receivables HEthEWZERNG B EE - 15,153 - 15,153
Financial assets at fair value through BRATBELZABRER
profit or loss HHEE 28 48,314 - - 48,314
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 29 - 540,008 - 540,008
48314 1,167,788 44,559 1,260,661
Financial liabilities g =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
DY §:9:%:
Notes S8R
Wit BKEaE
HK$’000
FET
Trade and bills payables ERERREE 30 134,920
Financial liabilities included BIREEEAMENKIER
in other payables and accruals EEtRIBZBM B AR 162,746
Finance lease and hire purchase BEMARBES L
contract payables FE T FRIB 32 3,804
301,470
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. CRMIESE(#&)
(continued)
Group £
31 December 2010 —E-BF+=-HA=+—H
Financial assets MBEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading  receivables assets Total
BLFEZA
Notes Ba RS BRE  AHEER
Wi AE-REEE  EWUE  MBEE A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Investments in jointly-controlled entities ~ F EREE#| A AAYEZE 21 - 22,261 - 22,261
Investment in an associate R—EBEDENEE 22 - 29,581 - 29,581
Available-for-sale investments fRNERE 23 - - 50,088 50,088
Trade receivables B I B X 26 - 518,399 - 518,399
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEBNHE  BE kR
deposits and other receivables HitEWFEMES B EE - 16,072 - 16,072
Financial assets at fair value through BRATELZABRERRN
profit or loss HBEE 28 58,654 - - 58,654
Cash and cash equivalents BekH&ZEEE 29 - 566,006 - 566,006
58654 1,152,319 50,088 1,261,061
Financial liabilities MKaE
Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost

DA 35 X AR

Notes 51 BR Y

B &t B aE

HK$’000

T

Trade and bills payables FER RS R EE 30 140,009
Financial liabilities included in B FETE H 4t FE ST RUIE R

other payables and accruals [EEtRIBZ BB E 156,794

Finance lease and hire purchase MEMENRAEELD
contract payables J& 1~ R I8 32 7,233
304,036
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

B 75 g 2} BT =E

— =

37 December 2077 —Z

43. SRTESE(£&)

F+-A=+—H

(continued)
Company RAF
Financial assets HMBEEE
Loans and receivables
ERRERIE
Note 2011 2010
k2 —E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets included in BREEEMRE EE& R
prepayments, deposits and H M ERRIBO IS EE
other receivables 84 105
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeFEEE 29 1,011 529
1,095 634
Financial liabilities BKEE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
DBEmAINEZHREE
Note 2011 2010
W —E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Due to subsidiaries JEAST BT B A R 3K I8 20 38,762 41,792
Financial liabilities included in BREEHEMEMNRER
other payables and accruals EEtRIBZ BB E 6,556 5,334
45,318 47,126
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

44. PTFERAFESERFEE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s AEBMARA R ITANKEEELAFE
and the Company’s financial instruments are as follows: mr
Group KEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE DFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g—-% -T-TF =%—-%F -T-Tf
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T FHET TET
Financial assets EJT BEE
Investments in RERZEHIRFRIRE
jointly-controlled
entities 15,954 22,261 15,954 22,261
Investment in an associate R—EBERRNKRE 35,142 29,581 35,142 29,581
Available-for-sale BAFEIED
investments, at fair value AR ERE 7,381 6,365 7,381 6,365
Trade receivables U R 3R 561,531 518,399 561,531 518,399
Financial assets included BREEENHRIE Eek
in prepayments, deposits Hpth e R IE R BT TS B B
and other receivables 15,153 16,072 15,153 16,072
Financial assets at fair BAFETLABZERN
value through profit B EE
or loss 48,314 58,654 48,314 58,654
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFAEEE 540,008 566,006 540,008 566,006
1,223,483 1,217,338 1,223,483 1,217,338
Financial liabilities MEaE
Trade and bills payables R RR KR 134,920 140,009 134,920 140,009
Financial liabilities BRETEMENTIER
included in other BB MBAE
payables and accruals 162,746 156,794 162,746 156,794
Finance lease and hire BMEHOREESALY
purchase contract e 5RIA
payables 3,804 7,233 3,552 6,621
301,470 304,036 301,218 303,424
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44, NFERAFBEZRENE ()

(continued)

Company

RAT

Carrying amounts

Fair values

HREE NEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B2——-fF —E-ZF —E——-F —E-ZF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets included BEEENRE e kEM
in prepayments, deposits ERFIAN BB EE
and other receivables 84 105 84 105
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 1,011 529 1,011 529
1,095 634 1,095 634
Financial liabilities MEEE
Due to subsidiaries JE <} BT /B X R FRIA 38,762 41,792 38,762 41,792
Financial liabilities PREEEMBEMNFEBER
included in other EETREZ B AR
payables and accruals 6,556 5,334 6,556 5,334
45,318 47,126 45,318 47,126

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and investments in an associate
and jointly-controlled entities, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of finance lease and hire purchase
contract payables have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

BBEERABENATFEUAZIABRRS
77 (RERBRIERIN ERIRH THAI X
SEBARR o THITERBRERTIAIAEF QF

18

HRZETANEMIMME R LREF

BER - YRR

ENEREEE  BRE

BNHIE  REREMERFBENTEEE -
BREEMBENREREFFKAZHBAE

AR — B E R

MR FERHEE

AN KFEESRARHRE
HHREEMES -

MEBOLBEBEOENRENRFETIE
REMERARBEERLGR  EERR MG T

FEIR T A/AIE

At

ﬁo

CERTEMARRRE RER
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining

and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value:
Group

As at 31 December 2011

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

44. NP ERLATFESEHRHE (£E)

AFEERHEE (H)

WA TEFBHEE
A
R=FB-——%+=A=+—H

Available-for-sale investments: RJEHE®RE :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E8— E&= E&= &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

FET FET FET FHET

Equity investments ERRE 47 - - 47
Debt investments BEBIE 7,334 - - 7,334
Financial assets at fair AT ELEAERE
value through profit ZUHBEE :
or loss:
Equity investments EMRE 17,684 - - 17,684
Debt investments BIEHE 30,630 - - 30,630
55,695 - - 55,695
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-ZETFE+-_A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EFH— EH= EH= A
HK§$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments: RAIEHE®RE :
Equity investments R E 47 - - 47
Debt investments BBEKE 6,318 - - 6,318
Financial assets at fair BAFELRABER
value through profit ZHBEE
or loss:
Equity investments Rt E 35,725 - - 35,725
Debt investments BBIRE 22,929 - - 22,929
65,019 - - 65,019

During the year, there were no transfers into or out of

Level 3 fair value measurements (2010: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2011 and

2010.

The Company did not have any financial assets and

financial liabilities measured at fair value as at

December 2011 and 2010.

31

WARER R - R AR S R =2 ATE
HE(CE—BF: ®) -

R —£R-F BE+-A=+8 "
AEELELTAEAFEAENMBAG -

R-E——FR_FE-FF+_A=+—8"
ARRYETFABRRIFEFENRHEER
MIBALE -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. IEREERERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise finance lease and hire purchase
contract payables, and cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps, for trading purpose.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and market risk. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing such risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies
in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, jointly-controlled entities and
an associate. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does
not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale financial assets, equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss, amounts due from jointly-
controlled entities, other receivables and certain
derivative financial instruments, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, jointly-controlled entities
and an associate, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and
projected cash flow from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts, bank loans and finance leases.
The Group’s policy is that not more than 20% of its
interest-bearing bank borrowings should mature in any
12-month period. 29% of the Group’s debts (defined
as the aggregate of finance lease and hire purchase
contract payables) would mature in less than one year
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 23%) based on the
carrying values of borrowings reflected in the financial
statements.
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45 BIREBREERERBE (&)

FERR (&)

HRAEERSEBANEEBRFZE=T
AFEES AR RBERRETRS  BEER
BEMAR -EFERRETHHEERES HF
ToRWEREERAFNERE c AR AKEE
WM EPEREZDHRAR AR RIT
X A FEEERBRBEESETHORE -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. BEREEEEREE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

REBESRRE(E)

RBEHR  REAHARTRANRRE  A&E
MHAENRBHBERAT

Group rEE
2011
—B——-fF
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
PR1EF 1E5%F &t
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET TFET
Finance lease and hire purchase BMEHHRHEES L
contract payables JE 5 3R 1,121 2,683 3,804
Trade and bills payables ERER R RE 134,920 - 134,920
Other payables and accruals E i B < 5K TB K FEET 3B 162,746 - 162,746
298,787 2,683 301,470
2010
—E—FF
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
DRE 1E5% =X
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET TET TET
Finance lease and hire purchase BMEHHORHEES L
contract payables FEAST5RIE 1,670 5,563 7,233
Trade and bills payables FERERREE 140,009 - 140,009
Other payables and accruals H b B 308 R AT ROR 156,794 - 156,794
298,473 5,563 304,036
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates as all of the Group’s debts are at fixed interest
rates. The interest rates and terms of repayment of
the finance lease and hire purchase contract payables
of the Group are disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements.

Market risk

The Group trades in financial instruments, including
derivatives, equity securities and debt securities.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group is exposed to market risk through its derivative
financial instruments and other investments.

The Group has investment guidelines that set out its
overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and
its general risk management philosophy, and it has
established processes to monitor and control various
trading transactions in a timely and accurate manner.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value
of an asset, liability or highly probable forecast
transaction denominated in a foreign currency
will fluctuate because of changes in the foreign
exchange rate. When seeking to optimise the
returns on its funds available for investment, the
Group may invest in investments denominated in
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar from
time to time.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before tax and equity.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

45.

BEEREEERRBEE (&)

miE R ()

O SMNEmRE (&)

(ii)

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
RMB rate before tax in equity*
ARBER RR B A1 32 Al FE 2
EFH (T #mMmCED) Em/ GED)
% HK$’000 HKS$°000
FHET FHET
2011 —E-—fF
If the Hong Kong dollar MR TS
weakens against RMB AR 855 2% 600 -
If the Hong Kong dollar NERBEB TS
strengthens against RMB ARKER (2%) (600) -
= ABEREBER

* Excluding retained profit

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no
investment subject to foreign exchange risk.

Equity and commodity price risks

Equity and commodity price risks are risks that
the fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and
commodity prices and the values of individual
securities or commodities. The Group is exposed
to equity and commodity price risks arising
from individual investments classified as held
for trading. The Group’s investments are listed
or linked to securities listed on stock exchanges
in Hong Kong and the United States of America
and are valued at quoted market prices or quoted
prices from investment banks.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Equity and commodity price risks (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 10% change in the fair value of the financial
assets, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, of the Group’s profit
before tax and equity, based on their carrying

amount at the end of the reporting period.

B 75 g 2} BT =E

37 December 2011 —F——F+_-H=+—H

45 BIREBREERERBE (&)

miEE k()
G #zREmEEER (&)

T R BN 7S & B BR A AT i A K B v S B
BEENAFE(RBEENREHROEK
HE) BEHI0NNHEE  AEHMBE
HHRFAE  BUEAREBENME
R E -

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Investments listed in: ETYE EmmigsE
Hong Kong BB 1,646 3,441
Unlisted investments at fair value: JELTIRE  HAFME:
Held for trading FIEEE 3,063 -
Capital management EXEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. As at 31 December 2011, the
Group complied with the externally imposed capital
requirements and there was no indication of breach of
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

AEBEAEERNIZERRRENEEE
BRSBEEZERLEENRD  UESRED
BARLER  UXRHEEHREERMBRERE -

AEEEZERINEERARBEEENRK
FREEEEERNERE  WHHELRAE &
BRAEREREER  AEEJRSAERLHN
FREMNKS REEARNTRENXZFITHR
BeR_BE——F+-_A=+—8  AE£EEN
ERAWBEINNIINEERER BYEER
RENTE NEBEE-_ZT——FR_T—TF
+ZA=+—HLEFERN BEEEANBERZE-
BRI EEE -
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

46. BN BB

ARREEMBARZFBWT

Place of Nominal Percentage
incorporation/ value of issued of equity
registration share/registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
MY, EBRTROEES ARNRESL
HELAREE BRRRE M HMER BREABEDL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
=3 &
Chinese Information Radio United States US$100,000 - 100 Radio
of America common stock broadcasting
E3E 100,0003 7T EREE
el
Flash Bright Development Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Limited o ordinary shares photographic
it ERARAA 5,000,000 7T products
gL BY SV DH
Job Market Publishing Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Newspaper
Limited s ordinary shares publishing
KBRS HRBRDA 2B TT REET
el
Land Profit Development British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Securities trading
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share and investment
EBRABE/ 1ETT EFEENRE
B ¥BR
Perfect Treasure Investment Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Securities trading
Limited o ordinary shares and investment
HEERERAA 100,000/ 7T ERBEELKRE
el
Premier Printing Group Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Printing
Limited s ordinary shares Nl
HRz KB EBEER A A 28T
gL
Sing Tao Magazine Group British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Magazine
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share publishing
EEMTEEERAT RERLZBE/ 1%7T and advertising
Bk Rl agency
MRETR
BEEHE
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. B A TISE (&)
Place of Nominal Percentage
incorporation/ value of issued of equity
registration share/registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities
dAMEY, EBRTROEES ARNRESL
HELARERE BREREESR ZMER BRABEDL IREHK
Direct  Indirect
BHE %

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited Canada CA$1 - 100 Investment
mex common share holding and
1T property holding
gl REZER R
ESSEC]
Sing Tao Educational Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Book publishing
Publications Limited 5 ordinary shares EHERT

EBHBEHREERATF 10,0007 7T

el
Sing Tao Limited Hong Kong HK$77,650,000 - 100 Newspaper
EBBERRAT o ordinary shares publishing
77,650,000/ 7T REHT

el
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$100,000 - 100 Newspaper
Los Angeles Ltd. of America common stock publishing
EE 100,0005 7T REHLT

el
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$5,550,000 - 100 Newspaper
New York Ltd. of America common stock publishing
EE 5,550,0003 7T WEHLT

EpeLe
Sing Tao Newspapers Australia AU$250,000 - 100 Newspaper
Pty. Limited BN ordinary shares publishing
250,000)% 7T REHT

el
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$2,335,000 - 100 Newspaper
San Francisco Ltd. of America common stock publishing
xE 2,335,000 7T REHLT

gL
Sing Tao (U.K.) Ltd.# United Kingdom GBP100 - 100 Newspaper
S ordinary shares publishing
1002 8 RERT

el
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

46. B QBB (&)

Place of Nominal Percentage

incorporation/ value of issued of equity
registration share/registered attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and operations capital the Company activities

ZMRYL, BRTROEES v YN 2
MEAE AR BRRRE R ARER BREBDL TEXHB

Direct Indirect
B GiF:3
tRESERFERM PRC/ RMB23,000,000 - 100 Software
MR A R Rl Mainland China registered capital development
RE BN AR23,000,0007T BB B
AMEAR

ERHMEERER PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 925 Provision of
BMER AR Mainland China registered capital value-added
RE BN ARMS0,000,0007T PRC business
HMER information
REPBEER
2 EER
EMmeERmE PRC/ RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Wholesale and
ERARNGE Mainland China registered capital retail trading
RE BN ARS,000,0007T HERTEEH

A A

#  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

* The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-
owned enterprise under the PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group.
To give details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2012.
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TE2VEHE

37 December 2017 —FE——F+_H=+—H
Approx.
gross Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area interest expiry  Main occupants
BgE £9 B4
3t R AR R# RO FifiEsE  EREH  TEGRE
(square feet) %
(FriR) %
(D PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION:
BEERAZNE:
Located in Hong Kong
TREE

1. Rooms 1401-06, 14/F, Inland Lot No. 2 Commercial 4,279 100 2842 Flash Bright
Car Po Commercial Building, A ER25% [GES Development Limited
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, miERER AT
Central
IR
TR EH37-435%

RERFAR
14181401-06%

2. 7 Chun Cheong Street, Lot No. 39 Industrial 156,798 100 2047 Premier Printing
Tseung Kwan O, 1 Ex395% I% Group Limited
Industrial Estate, iR 2 RN
Tseung Kwan O SEBRRAA
HER
KERTX
REWTHR
Located in Mainland China
oy ealciakis

3. Unit 8E, Lan Yuan Mansion, N/A Residential 1,132 100 2064 Sing Tao News
Beijing Jindao Garden, TEH Fx Corporation Limited
No. 1 Xibahe Nan Road, EEHEEEERAT
Chaoyang District,

Beijing, Hebei Province
ALEERTHGE
7 87 R B8 15%
EtRESEE
HILBSER

4. Units 501 and 502, N/A Commercial 10,064 100 2052 Sing Tao News
The Spaces International Centre, 1N [GES Corporation Limited

No. 8 Dongdaqiao Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
trmHGE
RABHRSH 152

e A B R

S01Z R502E

EENBEEBRAR

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2011




Schedule of Major Properties

TEVEHE

37 December 2017 —FE——F+=-H=4+—H
Approx.
gross Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area interest expiry  Main occupants
#Em £9 B4
st B AR iiked RO FifiEsE  EREH  TEGRE
(square feet) %
(FrHR) %
()  PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION: (continued)
BEBRZNE: (8)
Located in the United States of America
REE]
5. 215 Littlefield Avenue, Lot 7 Industrial 14,900 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers
South San Francisco Block 4 I% interest San Francisco Ltd.
XAz
6. 188 Lafayette Street, Lot 40 Industrial 16,200 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers
New York Block 473 I% interest New York Ltd.
KAz
7. 17059 Green Drive, Tract No. 26265  Industrial 63,500 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers
City of Industry, Lot 7 I% interest Los Angeles Ltd.
Los Angeles K AR
(ID  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
REME:
Located in Hong Kong
1. Rooms 1305-06, 13/F, Inland Lot Commercial 1,632 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [GE (long BUE=
No.37-43 Pottinger Street, A ER25% term)
Central (REH)
IR
IR E 37435
REBFAR
13121305-06%
2. Room 1504, 15/F, Inland Lot Commercial 471 100 2842 Vacant
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 GES (long =&
No.37-43 Pottinger Street, A ER25% term)
Central (REH)
IR
IR E 37435
REBFAER
1521504%
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Schedule of Major Properties

TE2VEHE

37 December 2017 —FE——F+_H=+—H
Approx.
gross Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area interest expiry  Main occupants
BgE £9 B4
Hhit HERES R# RO fribEs  ERFE  IREAE
(square feet) %
(FriR) %
(II) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (continued)
REWE: (£)
Located in Canada
TRMEX
3. 411-417 Dundas Street West, Part of lots Commercial 23,000 100 Freehold  Sing Tao
Toronto, 6 and 7 [GES interest Newspapers (Canada
Ontario Plan D-116 KAER 1988) Limited
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Five Year Financial Summary

OFEFHME

A summary of the published results and of the assets,

liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the

last five financial years, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, is set out below.

AEEBEREAMBFEZCNERE BELA
EUANEEREaME DR EC N BEERY
BHRERWAT -

RESULTS E44
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —ZT-IFF ZTTNF ZTZTE\F ETLF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FEIT FET
Revenue A 2,390,903 2,909,661 2,574,964 2,432,780 2,254,223

Profit/(loss) for the year — AFEHF (FE) 138,627 237,241 114,536 (142,014) 159,617

Attributable to: AT ALTEWN:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ F BN 138,668 240,443 121,139 (141,984) 159,617
Non-controlling interests JEFERE = 41) (3,202) (6,603) (30) -
138,627 237,241 114,536 (142,014) 159,617

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

EE BENFERERS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —T-Z2F ZTTNEF Z2TN\F —ZTTLF

HKS$’000 HK$°000 HEK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets BERE 2,400,672 2,348,924 2,135,531 2,097,652 2,540,343
Total liabilities afERE (492,137)  (499,429)  (484,934)  (570,101)  (869,084)
Non-controlling interests FE 5 AR 7 = (310) (35D (32,164) (43,225) -
1,908,225 1,849,144 1,618,433 1,484,326 1,671,259
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